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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

This section contains the following subsections:
Letter of Transmittal

_ Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

City of Sanibel Organizatiohal Chart

List of City Elected and Appointed Officials




City of Sanibel

800 Dunlop Road
Sanibel, Florida 33957-4006

AREA CODE - 239
HTY COUNCIL 4724135
\DMENISTRATIVE 723700
SUILDING 4724355
IMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 3723111
INANCE 4728515
EGAL 4724359
SARKS & RECREATION 4728075
TLANNING 4724138 3
*QLICE 5723181/
FBLIC WORKS 4726397
JTILITIES 472-1008

Recycled papai- {3

T

| July 22,2004

Honorable Mayor and

Members of City Council
CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
Sanibel, Flortda

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Sanibel,
Flordda, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 is respectfully
submitted, Chapter 218.39, Florida Statutes and the City Charter requirs
that a complete set of financial statements be published within one year
of the fiscal year end and be presented in conformance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United State of America (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with auditing standards generally”accepted iir,the

! United States of America by licensed independent certified public

accountants.

This report comsists of management’s representations conceming the
finances of the City. Consequently, management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free
Som material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.

The City of Sanibel’s financial statements have been audited by Schultz,
Chaipel, CPA’s., LLP, a licensed certified public accounting firm. The
independent audit was performed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2003 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, of, a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

\ disclosures in - the financial statements; assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial statements
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as
the first component of the financial section of this repost.




SUMMARY OF PRESENTATION
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is presented in four sections:

INTRODUCTORY SECTION — includes the table of contzuts, this letter of transmittal,
which is designed to complement the Management’s Piscussion and Analysis (MD&A)
and should be read in conjunction with it, the City’s organizational chart and the list of
City officials.

FINANCIAL SECTION - includes the auditors’ opinion, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), Basic Financial Statements, Required Supplemental Information, and
Combining Financial Statements and Schedules. GAAP require that management
provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial
stataments in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The MD&A céd be .«
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

STATISTICAL SECTION - includes selected financial and general information
presentzd on a mulfi-year comparative basis. This information is designed to reflect
social and economic data, financial trends and the fiscal capacity of the City.

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION ~— is required in order for the City to be in conformity with
the provisions of the Single Audit Act and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, dudits of States, Lacal Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and
in conformity with the Florida Single Audit Act (Section 2135.97, Florida Statutes) and
Chapter 27D-1, Rules of the Executive Office of the Governor, Florida Administrative
Code. Included in this section are the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance and the auditors’ reports on internal control and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

With the September 30, 20053 financial statements, the City implements a dramatic
change in governmental financial reporting. The format and purpose of these changes are
addressed in the MD&A. Additionally, the notes to the financial statements discuss the
changes and the results of these changes.

THE CITY

The City of Sanibel incorporated on November 3, 1974, The City of Sanibel is located
on Sanibel Island, 2 barrier island in the Gulf of Mexico off the coast of southwest
Florida in Lee County. The City is connected to the mainland by a three-mile causeway
owned and operated by Lee County, Florida. The City operates under the council-
manager form of government. The policy-making and legislative authority is vested in
govering council consisting of five (5) non-partisan members elected at-large in
staggered four (4) year terms. One council member is selected annually from among the
five council members to serve as the Mayor.

The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances and
resolutions, adopting the annual budget, appointing committees and hiring the City's
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Manager and Attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City and
for appointing the heads of the various departments. The City provides a comprehensive
range of> municipal services including general government, public safety (police
protection and building inspection, fire services are provided to City residents by an
independent taxing district), natural resource management, including an environmentally
sensitive land acquisition and restoration program, sewer ufility services (water service is
provided to City residents by a water cooperative), transportation, including road, bridge
and multi-use path construction and maintenance, a below market rate housing program
and cultura/recreation activities.

REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all funds and the component unit of the City. . The City, as.the
primary government, includes Community Housing and Resources, Inc! (CHR) as a
component unit using the discrete method of presentation determined pursuant to
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 14 ecriteria. CHR is under contract
with the City to administer the City’s Below Market Rate Housing program. Although
the Board of CHR is not selected by the City Council, CHR is fiscally dependent upon
the City in that there is a financial burden to the City and the nature and significance of
the relationship between the City and CHR is such that excluding CHR from the City’s
financial statements would be misieading and incomplete.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Sanibel, located in Lee County, is a highly desirable tourist destination. Lee
County is also onme of the fastest growing counties in Florida in both absolute and
percentage population growth and in total housing starts.

The City’s population of permanent residents and registered voters continues to grow
with the permanent resident population almost doubling and the number of registered
voters more than tripling since incorporation 29 years ago.

YEAR RESIDENTS VOTERS
1974 2,875 £,306
1984 4,375 3,029
1994 3,672 4,520
2003 6,224 4,968

-

The City has a tremendous impact on the area economy because Sanibel Island
contributes significantly to the attraction of tourism to the southwest Florida area.
Sanibel has miles of beautiful beaches, which are world-renowned for shelling. Seventy-
seven percent (77%) of the island is either within a federal wildlife preserve or otherwise
classified as conservation lands. The protection of the environment is a paramount
priority of the City and its residents.
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The City also recognizes the economic and infrastructure impact of the growing numbers
of seasonal residents and tourists. During 2003, the number of seasonal residents peaked
at between 18,000 and 20,000. However, causeway traffic which had stabilized over the
prior three years 2000 through 2002 at about 3.4 million vehicles per year, saw for the
first time in 40 years a'reduction in causeway traffic. In January 2003, the 40-year old
causeway bridges developed serious structural cracks which necessitated the closure of
the causeway for 32 hours while Lee County contractors replaced a 50 foot portion of the
middle (B-span) bridge. To follow that event engineers found that the C-span as well as
the A-span had significant structural damage. Ad a result, the County reduced both the
weight and speed limits on the causeway. This situation creates both a fiscal impact to
the City on revenues and expenditures and an economic impact on the community,
particularly the construction industry. The City's response to the causeway crisis was to
reduce the fiscal year 2002-03 budget by $750,000 for the immediately identifiable
impact on revenues and to classify a tiered-approach in expenditures to be postponed er
gliminated from the fiscal year 2002-03 budget. Daily monitoring of all conditions is
continuing to be made by the City Manager.

Calendar Causeway Percent Encrease
Year Traffic {Decrease)
1973 793,373 N/A
1930 1,553,281 85.78%
1985 2,290,961 47.45%
1990 3,020,181 31.83%
1995 3,199,822 5.95%

2000 3,433,769 731%
2003 3,257,747 -3.13%

The environment is another important concern of our citizens and strict development
standards have been designed and implemented since the City incorporated in 1974
These standards have helped to contribute to increases in the appraised values of property
on Sanibel, Between tax years 2001 and 2002, existing property values rose 11.75% and
new construction added an additional $41,932,446 for a total property value of
$3,653,763,340. This progressive growth of the tax base has allowed the City to maintain
a millage rate far below the State-regulated ten (10) mill cap:

TAXABLE MILLAGE

TAX YEAR (%) VALUATION RATE
1998 ) $ 2,266,696,270 2.0126
1999 o 2,393,659,200 1.9181
2000 2,682,897,770 1.7291
2001 3,226,396,010 1.7291
2002 3,655,763,340 1.7291

(*) The tax year represents a calendor year, upon which the levy of ad valorem taxes
is made in arrears and is recorded as revenus in the subsequent fiscal year,
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Although growth is restricted by geographic boundaries and build-out is anticipated to
occur in the near future, Sanibel’s economy is expected to be healthy because of the
tremendous attraction of Sanibel as a retirement and vacation site. Redevelopment of

currently developed property is another City concern as tremendous pressure is being

placed on Council from requests for larger and taller buildings which compromise the
land development code known as the Sanibel Plan.

Since the cost of services to .the comumunity continue fo grow and property taxes
comprised approximately 33% of fiscal year 2003 revenues from governmental activities,
the City continues to explore new methods for financing operational services and
infrastructure maintenance. Such methods include instituting new fees and/or increasing
existing fees and charges to insure economic recovery of costs associated with providing
certain governmental services such as building and development permit issuance.

SANIBEL VISION STATEMENT

The major and future initiatives described below were undertaken to further the adopted
City Vision Statement, as follows:

“Sanibel is and shall remain a Barrier Island Sanctuary, one in which a diverse
population lives in harmony with the Island’s wildlife and natural habitats.”

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The most complex environmental restoration project ever undertaken on Sanibel was
completed during 2003. What was once a poorly planned subdivision platted in the
1920's in a fresh water wetlands area has been cleared of exotic vegetation and has been
restored to a productive wildlife habitat and dedicated as a public patk. The area, known
as Tarpon Bay and Sanibel Gardens subdivisions, total approximately 314 acres and had
been excavated to create drainage ditches and fill roads. Since 1988, the City has been
purchasing the individual lots in these subdivisions and, through eminent domain
proceedings, acquired the land. The restoration project inciuded irregularly grading the
former road alignments and adjacent disturbed areas to form shallow ponds and islands to
provide diverse wetland elevations for fish and wildlife habitat. These restoration efforts
have resulted in an extraordinary new addition to Sanibel's protected heritage.

In November 2001, voters approved a bond referendum authorizing the issuance of up to
$5.621 million for the purchase of 8.61 acres of mostly commercially zoned rzal property
located on the north side of Periwinkle Way at Bailey Road known as Pond Apple Park.
In order to expedite the property acquisition, a one-year Bond Anticipation Note was
issued in December 2001 and the closing of the property acquisition in the amount of
$5,619,433 was consummated on January 8, 2002. In December 2002, the City paid off
the Bond Anticipation Note through the use of a $2.123 million grant from the State of
Florida Communities Trust and the issuance of $3.823 million General Obligation 30-
year bonds. Although commercially zoned, this property has environmental importance
because of an eagle's nest located on the southern area of the parcel.
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In October 2002, Phase IB of the Sanibel Sewer System expansion project was
completed. This $6.61 million expansion project on the east end of the island adds 577
Equivalent Residential Connections (ERC's) to the system. Construction on Phase [IC, a
$8.7 million project to install gravity sanitary sewer collection pipeline and wastewater
transmission pipes from Hurricane Lane to the end of West Gulf Drive for an additional
790 ERC's, was substantially complete as of September 30, 2003. Phase IOIA expansion
project, estimated at $6.2 million was begun during fiscal year 2003 and is scheduled for
completion in August 2004.

FUTURE INITIATIVES

The wastewater master plan includes a [V-phase plan to substantially sewer the entire
island and eliminate leaching septic tanks from contaminating the ground water. The
completion of the Sanibel Sewer expansion phases, financed by State Revolving Tioan
program, is planned for January 2006.

Pre-design plans have been developed by an architect to build a new recreation facility.
The current recreation facility, built in 1981 from community donations, includes an
outdoor swimming poel, an un-air-conditioned gymmnasium, weight room and multi-
purpose building. The estimated project cost for the new facility is $10 million. During
the summer of 2004, City Council will consider whether or not to move forward with the
project as well as options for the most favorable financing. '

City Council has also given staff direction to pursue the following projects and has
included funding in the fiscal year 2004 budget:

» Construction of a culvert between Dinkins and Clam Bayous to improve water
quality {3200,000)
Construction of a Pavilion at the Sanibel Scheol site (5200,000)
Continuation of the Exotic Plan Eradication ($240,000)
City Hall air conditioning duct work replacement ($150,000)
Construction of Phase II of the Ball field relocation ($360,000) funded by the sale
of fill materials to the School district.

. &+ & 8

In addition to the major and future initiatives described above, the City continues to
provide quality services to the Sanibel community while maintaining the operating
property tax rate at the same level for three consecutive years.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BUDGETARY CONTROL
Budgstary control is established by Section 3.12 of the City Charter, which requires the

adoption of an annual budget and Section 3.13 which provides for supplemental
amendments to increase, decrease or transfer funds within the annual budget framework.
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The Finance Director, on behalf of the City Manager, is responsible for the preparation of
the City's budget. The annual budget is adopted after an extensive review and evaluation
of budget proposals from the various City departments to determine the funding level
necessary to provide municipal services. Pursuant to the State of Florida “Truth In
Millage” legislation, -after consideration by Council and input by the citizenry at two
public hearings during September of each year, Council adopts the final millage rate and
the annual budget. )

Budgetary control throughout the fiscal year is maintained through monitoring
encumbrances of estimated purchase amounts. Encumbrances for goods or services not
received by fiscal year-end lapse and must be re-budgeted in the following year.

CASH MANAGEMENT

In response to investment losses of some other local governments in the United Statds,
the Florida legislature passed legislation requiring local government to adopt written
investment policies on of before October 1, 1995. The City adopted such an investment
policy, which places a priority on the safety of principal and liquidity. The City's cash
management program incorporates the principles of keeping all investments free from
risk, maintaining adequate lquidity and flexibility to meet both scheduled and
unscheduled obligations and maximizing return. Authorized investments include the
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (LGSFTF), negotiable direct obligations of,
or obligations the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the
United State Government and their agencies, non-negotiable interest-bearing time
certificate of deposit, repurchase agreements, and savings in “Qualified Public
Depositories” as defined in Florida Security for Public Deposits Act (Florida Statutes
Chapter 280). Additionally, the Pension Trust Funds are authorized to invest in corporate
bonds and equity securities,

The City maintains two (2) pooled cash accounts with the State of Florida LGSFTF. This
investment vehicle allows flexibility and earns favorable interest rates for the City’s
investments. There was $6,592,605 and $10,238,997 respectively deposited in the
General and Sewer Systern LGSFTF accounts at September 30, 2003. There were five
investments with US Government Agency securities totaling $1,416,449. The two
pension trusts combined had §10,932,795 (fair value) of investments as of September 30,
2003,

DEBT COVERAGE
The City’s Business-type activifies are summarized in the MD&A and the Government-
wide financial statements as a combined single column. The Sanibel Sewer System has

significant outstanding debt therefore to complement the availabie information in the
Notes to the Financial Statements, the following schedule is presented.
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2003 Sewer

Refunding State Revolving
Bonds Loans TOTAL

Operating Ravenues $ 2,638,452 - 2,658,432
Qperating Expenses {excluding Depreciation and
indirect Costs) (2.613.369) = {2.013.369
Net Operating Revenues 643,083 - 545,083
Ad Valorem Taxes-Votad Debt Service Levy - 1,344,129 1,344,129
Investment Incoms 47,059 289,502 336,561
Other miscellaneous revenue 10.694 - 10,694
Net Revenues available for Debt Service (excluding
Connection Fees) 702,836 1,633,63t- - 2,336:467
Connection Fees 47,529 4195441 4.242 970
Net Revenue and Connection Fzes Available for
Debt Service 750,385 5,829,072 6,379,437
Annual Debt Service Requirement $ 257469 $ 2,201,663 § 2,459,132
Debt Service Coverage from Net Revenues 2.73 N/A ]
Debt Service Coverage from Net Revenues &
Connection Fees . 291 2.63 2.68

The income level was more than sufficient to meet required debt service coverage under
the City’s bond covenants for all outstanding debt.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City continues its risk management program for workers’ compensation, property,
general and other liability insurance coverages. The City participates in a pre-
employment drug screening program for certain employees and employs an active safety
comumittes, not only to take advantage of the premiwm discounts offered for having these
programs, but to evaluate and reduce risk exposures. Thud»party coverage through the
Florida League of Cities Self-Insurers Fund (The League)} is maintained for workers’
compensation, property, general and other liability claims. The League has also been
involved in the City’s proactive approach to risk management,

.. PENSION BENEFITS

The City sponsors two single-employer defined benefit pension plans, one for its general
employees and the other for police officers. The plan benefits remained constant in 2003
for both the General Employees and Municipal Police Officers defined benefit pension
plans. A seven (7) member Board of Trustees administers the General Employees’

Pension Plan. A separate seven (7) member Board of Trustees administers the Police
Officers’ Pension Plan. Each year, an independent actuary is engaged by the respective
Boards of Trustess to calculate the annual required contribution amount which the City
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must make to ensure that the plans will be able to fully meet their obligations to retired
employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy, the City fully funds each year’s
annual required contribution to the pension plans as determined by the actuary. As a
result of the City’s funding policy, as of September 30, 2003, the City has funded 100%

of the actuarial accrued liability of the General Employees Pension Plan and 91.39% of

the Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Plan. The remaining unfunded amount is being
systematically funded over 30 years. The City offers no other post-employment benefits.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The City of Sanmibel has been awarded the Certificate of Excellence in Financial
Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for its
comprehensive annual financial reports each year since fiscal year 1936. In order fo be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City publishes easily readable-and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial reports. These reports satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. It is our belief that this
fiscal year 2003 report continues to meet program standards and it will be submitted to
the GFOA for their review.

A comprehensive financial report of this nature could not have been prepared without the
dedicated efforts of the Finance staff. We would like to express our sincere appreciation
to this staff for their noteworthy accomplishments in the completion of this endeavor.

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank you for achieving and maintaining
this high degree of fiscal responsibility.

Respectfully submitted,
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,‘5 The Government Finance Officers Association of the United

N States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Cerlificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the CITY
OF SANIBEL for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002.

%

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose ,
contents conform to program standards. Such reports must "
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Ceriificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year )
only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the R
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are o
submitting it to GFOA. A
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to~_
City of Sanibel,
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2002

& Cartificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporing is presented by the Governmment Finance Othicers
Association of the United States and Canada 1o
government units and public employes ratirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financiaf reporting.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

This section contains the following subsections:
ndependent Auditors Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Iinformation

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sanibel, Florida L ’

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sanibel,
Florida (the “City™), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, which, together with the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Community Housing and Resources, Inc., a
component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
fumished to us, and our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts

included for Community Housing and Resources, Inc., is based solely on the report of the other
auditors. ' ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to fimancial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sanibel, Florida, as of September
30, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thersof
and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

950 Encore Way, Suite 102 12660 World Plaza Lane
Naples, FL 34110 : Fort Mifers, FL 33907
(239) 4174007 . 1 (239) 939-5333

Fax: (239) 254-8249 www.swilcpa.com Fax: (239) 939-4682




As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, the City has implemented a new financial reporting
model, as required by the provisions of Govermment Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and
Local Governments, GASB -Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and dnalysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, GASB Statement No. 38,
Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, and GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and
Measurement of Certain Lzabzlznes aid Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements as
of October 1, 2002,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 22,
2004, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should berread in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 3 through 11 and schedules of funding
progress and schedules of contributions from employer and other confributing entities on pages 60
through 61, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplemantary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budget and actual schedules, and the statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations, and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor General and is not a required part of the basic
finanecial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor financial statements and budget to actual
schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

Seluly, Chaipel 0, ..
Schultz, Chaipel & Co., L.L.P.
April 22,2004
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis of the City of Sanibel's financial statements is intended to
provide a narrative introduction to the basic financial statements and an analytical
overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets of the City of Sanibel exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2003
by $63,192,424 (net assets). Of this amount, §7,899,216 of uarestricted net
assets may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. -

¥

0 The City's total net assets increased by $10,796,864 during fiscal year 2003. *

a  As of September 30, 2003, the City of Sanibel's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $14,231,782. This is an increase of
$3,124,745 over the September 30, 2002 ending fund balances.
Approximately 79% of this total is unreserved.

a The City of Sanibel's total debt increased by $7,027,024 during Fiscal Year
2003. This increase is discussed further in the debt administration section of
this letter. '

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements.

The Statement of Net Assets (page 14) and the Statement of Activities (page 15)
provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the City's finances. The statements separate governmental from business-type
activities but both are measurad and reported using the economic resource measurement
focus and the full accrual basis of accounting.

The Fund Financial Statements, which report by fund type, begin on page 16. The
sovernmental funds measure and report activities using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Therefore you will find
the reconciliation on page 17 that conmverts this data to an economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting for use in the enmtity-wide
financial statements. The Fuad Financial Statements present information in more detail
than in the Entity-wide financial statements. Except for the General Fund and the Pond
Apple Park Debt Service Fund, all other funds of the City are combined in an "other
funds" column. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
34 provides the authoritative guidance on the governmental financial reporting model.




THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

Government-wide financial statements are intended to allow the reader to assess a
government's operational accountability. Operational accountability is defined as the
extent to which the government has met its operating objectives efficiently and
effectively, using all resources available for that purpose, and whether it can continue to
meet its objectives for the foreseeable future. The statements separate governmental
from business-type activities. For purposes of these statements, both types are measured
and reported using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets-and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets
changed during fiscal year 2003. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods, such as uncollected taxes and earned but not used vacation leave.

Both of these financial statements distinguish the primary types of functions of the City,
defined as follows:

a  Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here,
including police, public works, recreation, management of natural resources,
building inspection, planning, code enforcement and general administration.
Major revenues supporting these activities are ad valorem taxes, sales and gas
taxes, franchise and communications services taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. Lesser revenues come from building permits, occupational licenses,
fees, grants and investments.

o Business-type activities - The City's Sewer System and Beach Parking
services are reported here. The services are supported primarily from user
fees. Financing of major capital is usually necessary. Debt service is
supported by user fees, special assessments and, for the Sewer System debt,
ad valorem taxes from a voter approved tax levy.

Fund Finaacial S{atements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain financial control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate




compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: :

1) -

Governmental funds - account for most of the City's tax-supported
activities: Examples are the General Fund and the Capital Project Funds.
These funds focus on how money flows into and out of the funds, and the
balances left at year-end. The accounting method used is called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that
can readily be converted to cash, usually within a 60-day period. The two
criteria used are that the revenue is measurable and available. Examples
of differences from economic focus are that debt proceeds and grants are
considersd current revenue, and purchases of capital are considered
expenditures whereas depreciation is not considered an expenditure since
there is no outlay of cash. In the City's highly regulatory. environment,
fund accounting serves a very important purpose, in that funds received
for specific purposes are identified as such and can readily be audited.
Proprietary funds - are used to account for the business-type, or
enterprise activities of the government. The City's two enterprise funds
are the Sanibel Sewer System and the Beach Parking Fund. All
proprietary funds use full accrual basis accounting and the economic
measurement focus. Fees or charges are the primary revenue source for
proprietary funds. However, the Sanibel Sewer System enterprise fund
receives tax revenue from a voter-approved tax levy to pay debt service
related to the capital expansion projects.

Fiduciary finds - are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be
found beginning of page 31.

Required Supplementary Information

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) call for certain unaudited information
to accompany the audited basic financial statement and accompanying footnotes. This
information is called required supplementary information (RSD and includes this
analysis, called the MD & A, budgetary comparisons, and trend data on pension funding.




THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City's combined net assets as of September 30, 2003 were $63,192,424. The City's
combined revenues, idcluding contributions, grants, charges for services and taxes, were
$27,915,934. Total expenses, city-wide were §17,119,070. The increase to city-wide net
assets was $10,796,864. The following Table 1 reflects the condensed Statement of Net
Assets for only the fiscal year ending on September 30, 2003 since this is the City's first
year of implementing GASB Statement #34 and comparative data for the previous vear is
not available. Comparisons will begin with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2004,

Table 1
Net Assets
Business- . Tota]

Governmental Type = " Primary "

Activities Activities Government
Current and other assets § 16,066,213 3 19,326,267 3 35,592,480
Capital assets, net of depreciation 31,420,527 31,295,988 82,716,515
Total assets 47,436,740 70,822,255 118,308,993
Long-term liabilities (8,707,520) (43,654,188) (52,361,708)
Cther lizbilities (1,572,431) (1,182,382) (2,754,863)
Total liabilides {10,280,001) . (44,836,370} {35,116,571)

- Net assets: _

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 24,424 842 7,309,318 31,734,160
Restricted 3,141,03¢ 20,418,017 23,559,048
Uneestricted 9,640,846 (1,741,650) 7,899,216
Total net assets § 37206739 % 25,985,683 § 63,192,424

The largest portion of the City's net assets (30%) are its investrent in capital assets such
as land, buildings, roads, bridges, machinery and equipment, less the outstanding debt
used to acquire those assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to citizens,
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. It is also important to
recognize that other resources will be required to repay the outstanding debt on capital
assets. Restricted net assets, representing 37.5% of total net assets, are subject to external
rastrictions on how they may be used. The remaining 12.5% of unrestricted net assets,
$7,899,216 may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
The City's overall financial position continues to be healthy.

Table 2 is the condensed Statement of Activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2003. As this is the City's first year of impiementing GASB Statement #34, comparative
data for the previous year is not available. Comparisons will begin with the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2004




Table 2
Chanages in Net Assels

Revenues:
Program revenuss
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues
Property taxes
Other taxas
Intergovernmental revenues
Other
Total revenues

Expenses (including indirect expenses):

General government

Public safety

Physical environment

Sewer

Public works

Beach parling

Economic development

Human services

Culture/recrzation

Interest on long-term debt

Total expenses

Increase in net assets
Net assets-beginning
Net assets-ending

Governmental Activities

Business- Total
Govemmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
$ 2,873,724 $ 3,339,123 T 6,412,847
2,435,931 149,960 2,589,891
2,468,263 4,290,064 6,758,327
6,468,467 1,344,129 7,812,396
2,289,904 - 2,289,904
1,354,821 - 1,354,821
345,803 351745 . 697.348
18.240.913 9675.021 - . _27.015.934
2,328,532 - 2,328,532
3,617,809 - 3,617,809
338,821 - 338,321
- 4,194,016 4,194,016
996,533 - 996,353
- 908,928 908,928
293,024 - 295,924
1,083 - 1,083
4,044 387 - 4,044,387
373,017 “ 373.0817
12,016,126 5,102,944 17234477
6,224,787 4,572,077 10,796,364
30,981,951 21,413,608 52.393.559
§ 37,206,738 $ 25985685 3 63,192,423

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City's four largest programs as well as each
program'’s net cost (total cost less program revenues (i.e. excluding taxes), generated by
the activities. The net cost represents the portion of each program that is supported by

various taxes,

The cost of all governmental activities this fiscal year was 312 million. This is the first
year of GASB Statement #34 implementation, so comparisons will begin with figcal year
ending September 30, 2004. As shown in the Statement of Activities (see page 13), the
net cost ultimately paid through taxes was $4.2 million The remaining $7.8 million was

provided by:

o $2.9 million in charges for services - There were $1.2 million from various fees
for general government services, of which indirect costs of $636,845,
occupational license fees of $247,385 and development-type fees of $257,165
were the most significant; vehicle overweight fees of $486,397 were the only
charge for services in the public works activity.




» $2.5 million in capital grants and contributions, the most significant of which was
a $2.123 million grant from Florida Communities Trust for the purchase of Pond
Apple Park reported in the physical environment activity. -

* $2.4 million was from operating grants, of which 32.181 million was from Lee
County for the Operation of the Sanibel Public Library.

Table 3
Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year 2003

Total Cost Net Cost (Eamings)

Of Services Of Services
Public safaty ‘ $ 3,039,351 3 3,015,949
Physical environment 329,423 (2,543,433)
Public works 2,043,246 332,641
Economic development 283,701 L 226,666
Cultuzre/Recreation 3,794,700 ' 1,717,739
All Others 3,115,022 1,484,648
Totals § 12,607,645 S 4,234,208

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the City's business-type activities as shown on Table 2, above, totaled
$9,675,021. Operating expenses totaled 35,102,944, which shows an increase in net
assets of $4,572,077.

Rates for sewer utility charges increased by the three percent (3%) annual indexing,
applied on October 1, 2002, per the City's rate ordinance. Beach Parking rates increased
from $0.75 per hour to $2.00 per hour as a result of a User Fee Study completed in the
surmmer of 2002 and implemented October 1, 2002.

THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted eatlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Goveramental Funds

Governmental funds are comprised of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service funds and capital projects funds. Governmental funds use the current financial
resources measurement focus that provides information on the near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. '

The General Fund i3 the chief operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. At the end
of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was §8,031,736,
while total fund balance reached $8,046,841. The fund balance of the City’s general fund
increased $1,087,695 during the current fiscal year. Key factors in this increase are as
follows:




e Property tax revenue increased by 3707,845 (13%) over prior year tax revenue
due to an increase in the assessed property value and new construction thus
increasing the ad valorem tax revenue from the same operating Millage levy.

o Other tax revenue increased by $119,524 (6%), intergovernmenta] revenue
increased by $177,833 (5%) and charges for services rose by $171,131 (15.5%)
due to State calculation factors applied to favorable economic conditions within
Lee County.

The 2002 $3.825M General Obligation Debt Service Fund is used to account for the
City’s other major governmental fund. All other governmental funds are accounted for in
the column entitled Other Governmental Funds.

Proprietary Funds .
The City’s proprietary funds are comprised of enterprise funds. An enterprise fund is
used to account for activities for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and
services. These funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the General Fund's original budget and final amended budget
equaled a $727,999 reduction in total revenues, due to the anticipated impact of the
increased and more strictly enforce vehicle weight restrictions on the Sanibel Causeway.
The Sanibel Causeway is owned by and the toll facility operated by Lez County. In
January 2003, the causeway developed serious structural problems, which caused its
closure for 30 hours for repairs. Since the City receives 21% of the net causeway
revenues from Lee County as well as vehicle overweight permit fees from the operation
of a Weigh Station on the causeway, the City reduced these revenue sources and
offsetting expenditures in anticipation of the effect of the increased weight restrictions
needed to be imposed due to the structural condition of the bridges.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City's capital assets as of September 30, 2003 reflect an investment of 382,716,515,
net of accumulated depreciation.

In compliance with GASB #34, the City has separated out an infrastructure asset
category, which was formerly included in Improvements other than buildings. The City's
infrastructure, such as roads, multi-use paths, bridges, piers and sewer pipe, is recorded at
actual or best estimate historical cost.

Table 4 provides a comparative summary of net capital assets by category for both
governmental and business-type activities.



Table 4
Capital Assets at Year End
{net of depreciatioal

- Covernmental Activities Business-type Actvities Totals
2003 2002 2083 2002 2003 2002

Land SI4922,253 320,657,873 3 1,347,831 31.3371051 322,270.104 521,994,906
Buildings 2,119,493 2,166,122 234313 154,725 2,364,008 2,420,347
lmprovements other than

buildings E36,234 {50,723} 333,970 384,309 496,214 323,386 '
Vehicles and squipment 1,351,992 £,864,217 896,462 154,727 2,248,454 2,638,944
Infrastructuss §,297.113 §414413 24,757,758 13,992,044 31,054,369 12,506,459
Construction  work i

pPrograss 383.230 - 23,399,436 26,323,797 24,232,366 35,525,797
Tosal Capital Assets $31,420.327 33 EM.SUG 331,295,933 345,258,535 532,718,315 375,300,539

Significant increases in assets this fiscal year include:
e Acquisition of environmentally sensitive land in the amount of $264,378.
» Vegetative grinder for roadway maintenance acquired with a capital lease for

$252,842. el
» Construction work in progress in the amount of $383,230 for ball field
improvements.

+ Completion of the Phase IIB (East end) Sewer expansion project, $35.6 million.

» Construction work in progress on the Phase II Sewer Plant capacity expansion
project, $1.4 million

+ Construction work in progress on the Phase IIC (West Gulf Drive, 84.6 million)
and Phase A (West end, $0.7 million) Sewer expansion projects.

Long-term Debt

As of September 30, 2003, the City had $51,972,612 in bonds, notes and leases. Table 5
below provides a comparative summary of the City's outstanding debt:

Table 3
Outstanding Debt
Govammental Activites Business-type Activities Totals
3603 7007 1003 1607 XTI - 1602

Bonds:

Generad Obligation Bonds 2375000 5 e 3 -0 & oQw $ 3,775,000 3 0

Ravenue Bonds 2,112,265 2,133,136 5,243,332 5,465,000 1.353,397 7,653,138
Notzs 2,222,564 9.288,375 33,356,564 31,003,337 45,339,172 37,292,352
Leages 252,843 - -0- «i}= 252,343 -£}-
Tatal 33,362.512 £ 3.475,75% $43,610.000 $36,443.337 331,972,512 $31.945.383

In December 2002, the City refinanced a $3,595,800 Bond Anticipation Note issued in
December, 2001 for the purchase of environmentally sensitive land with a $2,122,800
capital grant (discussed above) from the State of Florida Communities Trust and the
issuance of $3,825,000 million General Obligation Bonds.

In June 2003, the Sewer Utility Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series
1993 were refunded by the issuance of the 35,620,000 Sewer Utility Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2003 for a net present value savings of $664,713.

$8.9 million of draws against State Revolving Fund notes were made during fiscal year
2003 to finance the various phases of the Sewer expansion projects under construction.

=18~




Additional information about the City's capital assets and long-term debt can be found in
beginning on page 45 in Notes 3. (g) and 3. (i), respectively, of the Notes to the Financial
Statements. :

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Although the City enjoys a healthy economy because of the island’s desirability as a
tourist destination, as briefly discussed above, it was discovered in January 2003 that the
3-mile causeway, which links Sanibel I[sland to the mainland had severe structural
damage. Lee County, which owns and operates the Sanibel Causeway, took immediate
action to repair the most extreme damage and accelerated their plans to replace the three
bridge spans. However, the reduction of weight limits and speed limits on the causeway
have negatively impacted City revenue.

These factors were a paramount consideration when preparing the City's Fiscal Year
2004 budget. Although the fiscal year 2004 budget is being funded by the same tax rate
as was levied in the prior year, expenses continue to rise and the City remains prudent to
protect the reserves that have been slowly and carsfully accumulated and to match
current revenues with current expenditures.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Sanibel's
finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be address to the Finance Director, CITY OF SANIBEL, 800 Dunlop
Road, Sanibel, Florida 33957.

-11-
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT QF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2003

ABSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Receivahles
Due from sther governments
Intemal balances
Inventories
Prepaids
Net pension assat
Reastricted assets:
Cash and ¢ash equivalents
investments
Receivables
Unamortized bond issue costs
Capital assets {net of accumuiated depreciation):
Land
Buildings
improvements ather than buildings
Vehicles and equipment '
Infrastructure / System
Construction in progress
Total assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Deferrad revenue
Liabilitias payable from restricted assets
Long-term Habilities:
Due within one year
Cue in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
investaed in capital assets, nat of related debt
Restricted for:
Capitat projects
Debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assels

See Accompanying Notes.

Primary Government

Comoonent Unit

Governmental -Business-type

Community
Housing & ~ -

Activities Activities Total Resourges, Ing.
5 B,752872 § 559,886 § 8,312,758 3§ 287,198
1,331,661 - 1,331,661 -
2,718,718 205,782 2,924,501 75,300
782,882 164,865 947,547 -
2,084,598 {2,084,696) - -
2,777 - 2,777 -
12,328 - 12,328 ., 23,558

173,887 - 173,897 el
- 7,793,017 7,793,017 -
- 84,788 84,788 -

- 12,625,000 12,525,000 -
206,381 177,825 384,206 -
20,822,253 1,347,851 22,270,164 1,332,413
2,125,585 234,313 2,384,008 2,441,981
136,244 - 350,970 496,214 -
1,551,882 696,482 2,248,454 18,391
5,297,113 24,757,758 31,054,369 -

383,230 23.800 636 24,282 865 299,293
47,486,740 70822255 118,308,995 4 479 234
823,639 665,144 1,488,783 84,664
118,328 368,758 487,088 228,728
630,514 - 630,514 -
- 148,480 148,480 -
718,377 1,622,427 2,339,004 -
7,990,943 42.031.781 50.022,704 2.381.712
10,280,601 44 838,570 55,118,571 2,675,105
24,424 842 7,309,318 31,734,180 -
2,650,443 . 2,650,443 -
430,588 19,818,349 20,308,837 -
- 599,668 599,568 2,395
9,640,868 (1.741,6850) 7.895.218 1,801,734
537,206,739 §$ 25.985685 $863,192424 3§ 1,804,129
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equlvalents

invastmenis

Accounts receivable

Motas receivable

Due from other funds
Due from other governments

Inventorias
Prapaid items
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilitias:
Account payable

Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments

Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total abilities
Fund balances;
Reserved for:
Inventories

Notes receivable

Prepaids
Debt service

Unreserved, reported in:

General fund

Special revenus funds
Capital project funds

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

See Accompanying MNotes.

CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2603
2002 $3.825M
. General Other Total |
Obligation Governmental  Governmental
General Debt Service Funds Funds
§ 4314212 § 236,333 4,202.327 § 8,752872
1,331,681 - - 1,331,661
115,950 - 128,565 244 515
- - 2,474,204 2,474,204
2,257,938 - - 2,257,836
500,385 - . 282497 , 782,882
2,777 - . RN 44
12,328 - - 12,328
8,535,249 236,333 7,087,583 15,858,175
158,871 - 282,251 439,132
- - 47,833 47,833
- - 173,240 173,240
- - 110 110
331,537 - 5,027 336,564
- - 530,514 §30.514
488,408 - 1,138,885 1,627,393
2,777 - - 2,777
- - 2,474,204 2,474,204
12,328 - - 12,328
- 236,333 254,255 490,588
8,031,738 - 8,031,736
- - 589,706 568,708
- - 2,650,443 2,850,443
8,048,841 236,333 5,948 508 14,231,782
$ B8,535249 $§ 236,333 7,087,583 § 15859,173

1§



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2003

Fund batance totals: ) $ 14,231 ,?82

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net asset are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activitites are not financial resources and, therefors,
ares not reported in the funds. $ 31,420,527

Unamortized bond issue costs and underwriter's discounts are not current fi nancxai
resources and, therefore, are not reportad in the funds. e "+, 208,381

Met pension asset resulting fram overfunding of the general and police pension plans is not
reportad in the funds. 173,897

Debt interest payabie that will not be liquidated with current financial resources, is not
raported in the funds. (118,328)

Long-term liabilities, including bends payable, are not due and payable in the current pericd
and therefore ars not reported in the funds

Bonds and Notes Payable $ (8,109,770)

Capital leases payable (252,842)

Comgpensated absences {344.908) {8,707,520)
Net assets of governmantal activitiss $ 37,206,739

See Accompanying Notes,




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
- For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003
2002 $3.825M
~Gensral Other Total
Chbligation Governmental  Governmental
General Debt Service Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes
Property $ 6,101,278 $ 367,188 $ - 5 5,458,487
Gas 1,355,387 - - 1,355,397
Casualty insurance premium 43,518 - - 43,516
Franchise - - 478,854 478,854
Communications services 412,137 - e *.442,137
Licenses and permits 863,701 - 247,385 1,111,087
Intergovernmental revenues 3,678,881 2,122,800 318,526 6,121,007
Charges for services 1,273,804 - 321,757 1,585,581
Fines and forfaitures 128,895 - 3,188 132,084
QOther revenue 190,138 2,085 330.580 522,803
Total revenues 14,047,548 2,492,073 1,701,292 18,240,913
EXPENDITURES
Current .
General government 2,668,274 - - 2,698,274
Puhlic safsty 2,974,639 - - 2,874,839
Physical Environment 271,995 - - 271,995
Transportation 1,664,564 - - 1,664,684
Economic environment - - 285,701 285,701
Human sarvices - - 1,083 1,083
Culture/Recraation 3,461,023 - 284,845 3,755,872
Debt service '
Principal ratirament - 3,875,000 318,981 4,191,981
intarest and fiscal charges - 223,985 217,952 441,938
Bond issuance costs - 172,092 - 172,092
Capital outlay - - 2,696,809 2,696,909
Total expenditures 11,070,595 4,271,078 3.813.475 19,155,148
kxcess revenues over {under}
expenditures 2.976.953 {1,779,005) {2.112,183) (314,235)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - 3,102,100 3,108,100
Operating transfers out . {2,142,100) - {967,000) {3,109,100)
Capital leases o 252,842 - - 252,842
Bonds issued - 3,825,000 - 3,825,000
Discount on bonds issued - {38,862) - {38,862)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,889,258 3,786,138 2,142,100 4,038,980
Net change in fund balances 1,087,835 2,007,133 28,817 3,124,745
#und balances, October 1, 2002 §,959,146 {1,770,800) 5,818,621 11,197,037
Fund balances, September 30, 2003 § B046841 5 238333 3§ 5048508 § 14,231,782

See Accompanying Notes.
- 1 3_.




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Faor the Fiscal Year Endad September 30, 2003

Amounts re;:ortéd for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in Fund balances - total governmental funds ' § 3,124,745

Governmental funds report capital outlays as sxpendituras, Howevar, in the siatement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded
depreciation in the currant period.

Capital Cutiay 3 2,896,909

Degreciation {730,157} 1,968,752

A capital assat acquirad this year was financed with a capital lease. The amount financed !
by the lease is reportad in the governmental funds as a saurce of financing, On the other
hand, the capital lease is not revenue In the statement of activities, but rather gonstitutes g

jong-term liability in the statement of net assels. (252,843)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, notes, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial ressurces of the governmental funds. Neither transaction,
howsver, has any effect on net assets,
Principal debt payments 5 4,181,981
Bond proceeds 3,825,000} 366,981

Bond issuance costs are reportad in the governmental funds as expendituras. However, in

the Statement of Activities, these costs are allocated over the life of the debt as

amortization expense. This is the amount by which bond issuance expenditures exceed

amortization expense. . 206,381

in the statement of activities, certain operating expenses-compensated absences (sick pay

and vacations) are measurad by the amounts earned during the year. 1n the governmental

funds, however, expenditures for these items are measurad by the amount of financial

resqurces used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). This amount rapresents the

raduction in the accrual of compensated absences at 9/30/03 from 8/30/02. 147,756

indirect expense allccation reported in the statement of activities does not require the use

of additional financial resourcas and is therafore not charged nor reported as expendituras

in the governmental funds. . 591,518
interast on lang-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in

the gavernmenta! funds because interest is recognizad as an expenditure in the funds

when itis due, and thus raquires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of

activities, howaver, interest expense is recagnized as the interest accrues, regardiess of

when itis due. The reduction in interest reported in the statement of activities is the result

of accruing less interest at 9/30/03 than at 9/30/02. 73.496
Change in net assets of governmental activities ' $ 852247387

See Accompanying Notas.
_1 g-




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GEMERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Yaar Ended September 30, 2003
Varance with
Finai Budgst
.. Budgats Positive
Orginal Final Actuat {Negative)
Ravenues :
Taxas
Proparty taxas § 6,306,835 3 §,306.836 3§ 6,101,278 3§ (205,581
Gas taxes 1.310,800 1,310,000 1,355,397 45,387
Casualty insurance gramium fax 38,000 38,000 43,318 7.8186
Communications services tax 300,000 300,000 412,137 112,137
Licenses and germils 1,488,338 §89,338 863,701 (28,5837)
Intergovernmental revenuas 3,124,950 2,998,950 3,678,581 881,731
Charges for semvicas 957,332 g57,332 1,273,804 315,472
Fines and forfaituras 115,000 115,000 128,895 13,895
Miscelianaous 247.009 247.000 180.138 {56,862}
Total ravenues 13.886,455 13,158,458 14047548 © « , 889002 ‘.¢, u
Expenditures
Cusrant
Gereral governmant
Lagislative 302,534 232,915 245185 {12,273)
Administrative 524,832 474,443 480,019 14,424
Management information systems 312,158 314,833 280,486 24,347
Finance 452,802 476,610 458,587 20,043
Legal 331,703 350,373 300,884 49,489
Pranning 1,083,316 821,793 871,421 150,372
insuranca 274,940 270,940 273,712 {2,772)
Ganeral government 3,288.286 2.241.907 2,888,274 243,833
Public safaty -
Palics 2,475,575 2,572,148 2,503,871 {31,725)
Waigh Station 15,078 16,073 43,111 (33,032
SEMP 18,520 18,520 21,398 {2.878)
Building 376,852 344,070 300,253 43,811
Pubiic safety 2,886,325 2.950.815 2,874,838 (23,824)
Physigal Environment
Garbags racyeling 18,300 75,850 87,71 {11,881)
Matural rasourcas managameant 183,134 189,757 184,294 15,463
Physical Envirgnment 204,734 275,507 271,995 3512
Transportation-Public works 1,441,945 1.480.930 1,664,564 {183.734)
Cultura/Reacreation -
Liarary 2,000,0GC 2,000,000 2,180,671 (160,671}
Parks & Racraation -
Regreation complax 579,283 801,394 729,723 71671
Pubiie faciiities 505,114 479,428 439,161 20,267
Saniors program 85,253 95,124 95,171 2,953
Parforming arts facility 24.500 24,800 15,297 9,303
Culture/Recraation 3,295,285 3,404,546 3,461,023 {58.477)
Tatal expenditures 11114055 11,053,805 11,070,585 {16,780)
Excess ravenuas over exgenditures 2,772,399 2,104,551 2,075,953 905,882
Other financing sourcas {uses)
Raserve for contingencies {484 BT3) (135,275 - 135,278
Operating transfers out {2,480,447) (2,142,100} (2,142,100} —
Capital leases 252,842 (292.842)

Rasarva for undercoliection {384,111} {384,111) - 394,111
Total othar financing sources (uses)  (3.333.233) _ (2,671,487} 1,889,258} 275,545

Mat change in fund balances {365,834) (566,838) 1,087,595 1,654,501
Fund balances, Catober 1, 2002 3.896,389 3.895,389 5,959,146 3.062.757

Fund balances, Septembar 30, 2003 $ 3329555 5 3,329,551 5 3045841 5 4,717,288

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
September 30, 2003

ASSETS
Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from other governments

Total current assets

Moncurrent assets
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Receivables
Total restricted assets
Unamortized bond issue costs
Capital assets
Land
Buildings _
Improvements cther than buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure/System
Construction in progress
Less accumulaied depraciation

Total capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assels
Total assets

See Accompanying Notes.

Enterprise Funds

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System . Parking Total
5 - 5 559,886 § 559,886
205,782 L. . 205,782
14,525 150,140 ‘1 184,665
220,307 710,028 930,333
7,793,017 - 7,793,017
84,788 - 84,788
12,625,000 - 12,625,000
20,502,805 - 20,502,805
177,825 - 177,825
a75,209 372,642 1,347 .851
273,216 124,984 398,200
- 486,776 486,776
1,641,135 365,218 2,006,353
28,872,543 - 28,872,543
23,890,636 - 23,899,636
(5,233,235) (482,138) (5,715,371)
50,428,504 867 484 51,295,088
71,108,134 867 484 71,976.618
5 71,329441 § 1577510 $ 72,908,851
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
September 30, 2003

Enterprise Funds

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System Parking Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Account payable and other current liabilities  § 534,317 § 89,281 623,598
Accrued payroll 32,890 E B‘,SE_’:G e 41,548
Due to other funds 2,084,696 - 2,084,696
Total current liabilities 2,652,003 97,837 2,749,840
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Contracts payable 148,480 - 148,480
Accrued interest payable 368,758 - 368,758
Debt: 7 -
Revenue bonds 250,000 - 250,000
Notes 1,372,427 - 1,372,427
Total debt 1,622,427 - 1,622,427
Totai current liabilities payable from
restricted asseis 2,138,665 - 2,138,685
Noncurrent fiabilities
Compensatad absences 32,319 11,869 44,188
Debt:
Revenue bonds 4,893,332 - 4,993,332
Notes 36,994,241 - 36,994,241
Total debt 41,987,573 - 41,087 573
Total noncurrent liabilities 42,019,882 11,869 42,031,761
Total Habilities 46,811,560 108,706 45,921,266
NET ASSETS
Invested in capitai assets, net of related debt 6,441,834 867,484 7,309,318
Restrictad for:
Debt service 19,818,348 - 19,818,345
Renewal and replacement 132,705 - 132,705
Construction 468,983 - 468,963
Unrestricted (2,341,970} 600,320 {1,741,650)
Total net assels $ 24517881 § 1467804 25,985,685

Ses Accompanying Notes.



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

v For the Fiscal Year Ended Septermber 30, 2003

OPERATING REVENUE
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfsitures
Wiiscellaneous

Total operating revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Contractual services, materiais & supplies
Utllities
Depraciation
Insurance
Administrative charges
Repairs and maintenance

Teotal operating expenses
Operating loss

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Taxes
interast income
Special agsessment interast income
insurance proceeds on loss
Intergovernmental
Gain on sale of equipment
Interast expense and fiscal charges

Total non-operating ravenue (sxpenses)
Ingome before contributions

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Changs in net assels

Totat net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

Ses Accompanying Notes.

Sanibel Teial
Sewer Beach Enterprise
System Parking Funds
3 - 3 92,872 § 92,872
2,642,335 787,759 3,430,134
15,889 - 15,885
228 - 228
2,658,452 830.671 3,539,123
767,430 323,710 1,091,140
482,717 223,784 711,501
272,647 25,368 298,015
1,276,757 56,051 1,332,808
8,777 7.670 17,447
354,249 237,270 581,519
365,391 30,075 395,456
3.528,868 8908.928 4 437 896
{870,516} (28,257} (858,773)
1,344,129 - 1,344,129
275,731 4,480 280,221
60,830 - 60,830
2.424 - 2,424
- 149,860 142,860
8,270 - 8,270
{605.048) - (665,048)
1,028,338 154,450 1,180,786
155,820 126,193 292,013
4,280,064 - 4,280,064
4,445 884 126,193 4,572,077
20,071,897 1,449,611 21,413,808
3 24517881 5 14687804 3§ 25,985,685
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash raceived from customers
Cash payments fo suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Met cash provided by opearating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Repayment of advances fram other funds

Net cash {used in) non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Collection of taxes for bond debt service

Proceeds from capital debt
Capitat contributions

Collection of special assessments
Acquisition/Construction of capital assets

Principal paid on capital debt
interast paid on capital debt

Payment to refunding escrow agent
Premium paid for early bond redemption

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related

financing activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Froceeds from maturities of invesiments
interest and dividends received

Met cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -

Cash and equivalents - beginning

Cash and equivalents - ending

See Accompanying Motes.

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

Sanibel Total
Sewer Beach Enterprise
System Parking Funds
§ 2695298 § 880,671 3,475,959
(1,452,662) (452,014) (1,904 676)
{785,047) (324,554) {1,109,601)
357,588 1.04.1 03 451,692
(1.144,935) - (1,144,835)
(1,144,935} - (1,144,835)
1,344,129 - 1,344,122
14,499,083 - 14,499,063
192,785 - 192,785
1,755,357 - 1,755,357
(8,710,140) (47,288) (8,757,428)
(1,569,671) (24) (1,569,695)
(915,218) - {(915,216)
{5,656,119) - (5,686,119)
- [52,300) - {52.900)
887,288 (47,312} 839,976
63,193 - 63,193
269,080 4,480 273,570
332,273 4,490 336,763
432,215 61,281 493,496
7,360,802 498,605 7,859,407
§ 7,793,017 $ 559,836 8,352,803




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

Sanibel Total
Sewer Beach Enterprise
System Parking Funds

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by

operating activities
Operating loss § (870,518) 3 (28,257) % {898,773)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to nat cash
provided by operating activities

Depreciation 1,278,757 - '56;Q51 : "~1',:§32,808
Net {increase) decrease in: '
Accounts receivables {48,993 - {48,993)
Prepaid items 5,809 - 5,905
Net increase {decrease) in:
Account payable 25,209 77,153 103,362
Azcrued payrolt and compensated absences {17.817) (844) (18,4861)
Deferrad revenue {14,160) - (14,160)
Net cash pravided by operating activities $ 357,589 § 104,103 & 461,602

Supplemental disclosurs of noncash investing, capital and financing activities
Sewar assessments receivable new loans of 54,250,850

S22 Accompanying Notes.
~27-




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
o FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2003

Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 82,353 § 47,778
Investments, at market value
Mutual funds:
Equity 3,854,536 -
Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:
Fixed income 4 545 393 -
Equity 2,532,866 -
Total investments at fair value 10,932,795 -
Receivables 3,888 -
Totat assets 11,019,036 47,778
LIABILITIES .
Refunds payable and other liabilities 9,381 -
Due to other governments - 47,778
Total liabilities 8,381 47,778
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $§ 11009655 3§ -

See Accompanying Notes.




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

‘ For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

ADDITIONS
Contribubions
Employer
Siate of Florida
Plan members

Total contributions

investment income
Net increase in fair value of invesmenis
. Interest, dividends and miscellaneous

Total investment earnings

Less investment expense
Net invesiment earnings
- Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

Sees Accompanying Notes.

‘.29...

Pension
Trust
Funds

675,471
43,516
81,261

810,248

1,158,673
7.538

1,166,209
{(67.683)
1,098,546

1,908,794

592,692
17,861

41,921

652474

1,256,320

9,753,335

$ 11,009,655
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
§
The City of Sanibe!, Florida {the "City") was incorporated November 3, 1974. The Charter of the City
was adopted pursuant to the Laws of Florida, Chapter 74-608, as from time to time amended. The
City operates under the Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services:
general administrative, public safety, physical environment, wastewater utility services, ranspenatien,
human services, below market rate housing, culturefrecraation and capital improvements.

The Basic Financial Statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to government unils. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GAS38), as the succassor to the National Council on Governmental
Accounting (NCGA), Is the accepted standard-satting body for establishing governmentat accolinting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant City accounting policies are described below.

The accompanying financial statements prasent the combined financial position, results of operations
and cash flows of the applicable fund types and account groups governed by the City of Sanibel.

(a) Defiring the Governmental Reporting Entity

in determining the agencies, Boards or Authorities to be included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Raport; the City has considerad ail potential component units. The decision {oinclude
a potential companent unit in the reporting entity was macde by applying the criteria set farth in
GASE Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity.

A component unit is a legally separate organization for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. Under criteria established by GASE No. 14,
component units are to be either blended with the primary government or presented discretaly,
For a component unit to be blended it must meet one or both of the following two situations: 1}
the board of the component unit is substantively the same as that of the primary government or
2) the component unit serves the primary government exclusively, or aimost exciusively. Based
on the following criteria, the City, as the primary government, includes Community Housing and
Resaources, Inc. {(CHR) as a compenent unit using the discrete method of presentation.
Although the board of CHR is not selected by the City Council and CHR provides services
almost entirely to the citizens of the City of Sanibel, CHR is fiscally dependent upon the City in
that thera is a financial burden to the City and the nature and significance of the relationship
between the City and CHR is such that excluding CHR from the City's financial statements
would be misleading and incomplete.

Complete financial statements for CHR may be obtained at the entity's administrative offices
located at 2401 Library Way, Sanibel, Florida 33957.

(o) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The City has implemented a new financial reporting mode, as raquired by the provisions of
Government Accounting Standards Board {GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments,
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements ~ and Management's Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, GASE Statement No. 38, Cerain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures, and GASB Interpretation No. 8, Recognition and
Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial
Statemant, as of October 1, 2002, ‘



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 34, 2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles, Continued

(0)

{c)

Government-wide and fund financial statements, continued

These Statements mandated changes in the financial statement format and set forth reporting
changes. One such change is to capitalize infrastructure. This capitalization is required
prospectively and retrospectively for fiscal year ended after June 30, 1980. Although GASB No.
34 provides additional time {o capture and value the retrospective infrastructurs, the City has
chosen to report it in fiscal year 2003.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets-and the statement
of changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmantal activities, which normaily are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which raly to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the
primary gevernmant is reparted separately from certain legally separate component units for
which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrae io which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2} grants and contributions that are
restricied to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported Instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the iatter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds arz
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary
fund financial stalements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requiremenis imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recagnized
as soon as they are both measurable and avallable. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period, For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 80 days of the end of the current fiscal pericd. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and |
judgments, are recorded cnly when payment is due.

....32...




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies, Cantinued
(c) Measursment focus and basis of accounting and financial statement presentation, continued

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and
basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental column, a
reconciliation Is presented on the page following each statement, which briefly explains the
adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental
activities of the government-wide presentafion,

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are ali considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current
fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash Is received
by the government.

The City reports the following major Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for aii financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The 2002 $3.825 million General Obligation Debt Service Fund accounts for the rescurces
accumuiated and payments made for principal and interest for this long-term general
abligation debt of a governmental fund.

The City reports the following major Proprietary Funds

The Sanibel Sewer System Fund accounts for the activity of providing customers with
wastewater disposal services. The Sewer System operates sewage treatment piants,
sewage pumping stations, the collection system and a wastewater reuse system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the General Employees’ and
Municipal Police Officers’ retiremeant plans which accumulate resources for pension benefit
payments to qualified employees.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, are generally followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of foliowing
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govermnment-wide

financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned, ,

..33..
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CiTY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

()

(d)

Measurement focus.and basis of accounting and financiat statement presentation, continusd

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2} operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and cantributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Lakewnse general revenues
include all taxes. e Y

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongeing operation. The
principal operating revenues of the Sanibel Sewer System enterprise fund and of the Beach
Parking Fund are charges o customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
Sanibel Sewer System and Beach Parking enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as-non-operating revenues and expensas.

Whean both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted as they are needed.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1} Deposits and investments

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, cash on deposit with financial
institutions, and funds on deposit in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
Investment Pool administered by the Florida State Board of Administration. The Gity
maintains poaled cash for substantially all City funds except for restricted cash and
nvestments held with frustees. Equily in pooled cash is an accounting and invesiment
tool employed by the City by which the City is able to investiarge amounts of idle cash for
short periods of time thereby maximizing earning potential. The pooled cash is included
with cash and cash equivalents. Interest income is allocated based upon the
praportionate balance of each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments. For the
purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers highly fiquid investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased io be cash equivalents.

The City has Implemented GASB Statement No. 31 which cails for investment reporting at
fair value at Balance Sheet data. Since the difference between fair value and cost is
minimal at Balance Sheet date, investments are stated at cost, or amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Investments held by the City’s Pension Trust Funds are carried
at fair value.



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies, Continued
(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or aquity, continued

2)  Receivables and payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions cccur between individual funds for
goods provided cr services rendered. These receivables and payables are reported as
"due from other funds" or "due to other funds." Any residual-balances oufsfanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reporied in the
gevernment-wide financial statementis as "intarmal balances."

3) inventories and prepaid items
inventories consisting primarily of materials and supplies held for consumpticn are stated
at cost. For its governmential fund type inventories, the City utilizes the consumption
method of accounting, which provides that expendituras are recognized when inventory is
used.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicabie to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid itlems in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4)  Raestricted assels
Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside
for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants,

5)  Capital assstls

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, bike paths, and similar items) are reported in the applicable govemmentai
or business-type activities coiumns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than
$750.00 and an estimated useful ife in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at an estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated usefut lives of
the related assets, The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Assels Years
Buildings 15-50
Improvements other than buildings 13
infrastructure 30
Vehicles and Equipment 510

u
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Mote 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued .

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity, continued

6)

The cost of assets retired or sold, together with the related accumulated degraciation, is
removed from the accounts and any gain or loss on disposition is credited or charged to
earnings.

Intersst is capitalized on enterprise fund assets constructed with tax-exempt debt, The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting intarest expense Incurred
from the date of the borrowing until completion of the project construction with interest
earned on invested proceads over the same period.

Compensated absences

The City's regular full-time {40-hour-per-week) employees may accrue a maximum of 240
vacation hours. Regularly scheduled part-time employees who regularly work at last 16
hours per week accrue vacation teave in proportion to the amount of time worked. Sick
leave accumuiation is unlimited. tpon termination, employees can be paid for all acerued
vacation fime and 1/4 of all accrued sick time to a maximum of 390 hours, These
benefits pius their related taxes are classified as compensated absences. The
accumulated compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide
financial statements and proprietary funds. For Governmental Funds, the amounis
normally figuidated with expendable available financial resources are accrued in the
individual funds and the remaining portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) is maintained separately and represenis a reconciling item
between the fund and government-wide presentation.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statemants, long-term debt and other long-term cbligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period, The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received cn debtissuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

g
3



CiITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 39, 2003

Nate 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Cantinued.

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity, continued

8

9)

1Q)

11)

12)

13)

Unamortized Losses

L.osses from debt refunding are reported in the accompanying financial statements as a
deduction to bonds payable and will be charged to operations using the effective-interest
method by amortizing the loss over the shorter of the life of the old bond or the life of the
new bond, which is reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund fifancial
statements.

Utiiity connection (impact) fees

The City utilizes utility connection fees as a means for funding capital expansion required
to meet sewer system demands resulting from growth. These fees are recorded as
capital contribution revenue in the Enterprise Funds when charged.

Special assessments

The City levies special assessments against benefited property owners for construction of
wastewater utility expansion in certain arsas of the City. The speciat assessments are
recorded as capital confributions net of refunds in the enterprise funds.

Deferred revenus
Deferred revenue recorded in the Other Governmental Fund relates to occupational
licenses and impact fees, which are not earnad until the subsequent fiscat year.

intragovernmental aliocation of administrative expenses

The General Fund incurs certain administrative expenses for other funds, including
accounting, fegal, data processing, personnel administration, and other services. The
governmental funds that received these services were charged $1,187,860 and the
enterprise funds that received these services were charged $591,51¢ fiscal year 2003.
Administrative expenses not directly charged to a fund are allocated as Indirect Expenses
on the Statement of Activities.

Fund equity and deflcit fund equity

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund batance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose.




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Mote 2. Stewardship, comptliance and accountability
{a) Budge!s - Legal Compliance

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
axcept for the following funds for the respective reasons:

R

FUND TYPE and NAME REASON
Spacial Revenue Fund
Father Madden Estale No axpendituras were planned for the year
Capital Project Funds
Pond Apple Park Mo expenditures wers planned for the year
Gulf Pines/Guif Shores/West Gulf Drive Beach Restoration Mo expenditures were planned for the year
Beach Road Paving Special Assessment Mo expendituras wara planned for the year

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service funds, certain capital project funds, and enterprise funds. All annual approgriations
lapse at fiscal year end and are not automatically re-appropriated the following fiscal year. On
July 1st of each year, the Lee County Property Appraiser supplies the City with the assessed
taxable valuation of the property located within the City on which the City's millage (property
tax) rate for the next budget year will be based. Prior to July 31st, a public hearing is heid at
which a proposed budget is presented to City Council and, by Resolution, City Council
establishes a proposed millage {property tax) rate.

Based on the State of Florida "TREM"'(Truth in Millage) calendar, the City holds two public
hearings on the tentative millage rate and tentative budget during the month of September. On
or before September 30", the budget is legally adopted by Resolution. Project-length financial
plans are also adopted for alf Capital Project Funds.

Budget amounts are presented as originally adopted and as amended by City Council. Budgst
amendments, adopted by Rasolution of City Council, are used to revise the budgeted amounts
through the year. The City Manager may amend the budget within existing appropriations of
individual funds. ‘

The level of control whereby expenditures cannot exceed appropriations is at the fund level,
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, various supplemental appropriations were
approved by City Council in accordance with this policy.



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 2. Stewardship, compliance and accountability, Continued

(0)

{c)

{d)

Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended -Sepéembe{ 30, 2003, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following
funds, the iegal level of budgetary control: '

Governmental activities:

Balow Market Rate Housing-Fund § (73,723} . R
3™ Series 1997 Notes A & B (337) ° i
Environmentally Sensitive Land Rastoration (79,289}

These over-budget expenditures were funded by available fund balance andfor revenues
exceeding amounts budgeted.

Deficit Fund Balances or Net Assets of Individual Funds
The foilowing individual fund a had deficit fund balance as of September 30, 2003:

Governmental activities:
Brazilian Pepper Control Fund $ {130)

The Brazilian Pepper Contral capital project fund had a deficit fund batance if $130 as of
September 30, 2003. This deficit is the resuit of insufficient billing of grant expendifuras.
Management is of the opinion that this deficit will be billed and collected in the subsequent
fiscal year,

Property taxes

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each year,
or as soon thereafter as the tax roll is certified by the Lee County Propearty Appraiser, and
become delinquent on April 1 of the following year. The billing and callection of all property
taxes is done for the City by the Lee County Tax Collector.

The Tax Collector mails to each property owner on the tax roll a notice of taxes levied by the
varicus governmental entities in the County. Discounts are allowed for payment of property
taxes made between November 1 and March 1. Tax certificates for the full amount of any
unpaid taxes or assessments must be sold not later than June 1st of each year.

Procedures for collecting delinquent taxes, including applicabie tax certificate sales, tax deed
sales and tangible personal property seizure and sales, are provided for by the laws of Florida.
Enforceable len date is approximately two years after taxes become dslinquent and cceurs
only upon request of a holder of a definquent tax certificate. Key dates in the property tax cycle
(latest date, where appropriate) are as follows:

-3G-




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Mate 2. Stewardship, compliance and accountability, Continued

Note 3.

(d} Property taxes, continued

July 1 Assessment roll certified, unless extension granted
by Florida Department of Revenue.

83 days later {(normally Ociober 1) Millage resolution approved and taxes levied
following certification of assessmant roil.

Movember 1 Property taxes become due and payable {maxtmum
discount, i.e., 4 percent). .

April 1 Taxes becoma delinquent (lied date) et

Prior to June 1 Tax certificates sold.

The City is, in general, permitted by the State to levy property taxes up to $10 per $1,000 of assessed
valuation for general governmental services. The general operating, sewer and pond apple park
voted debt service tax rates for the year ended September 30, 2003 were 1.7291, 0.3838 and
0.1083, respectively, per §1,000 of assessed property valuation.

Detailed notes on ail funds

{a) Deposits and investments

The City mainiains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except for these
in which the cash must be segregated due to bond indenturs or other legal restrictions such asin the
pension trust funds.

Deposits

Deposits with qualified public depositories whose values exceed the limits of federal depository
insurance are entirely insured or collateralized pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida
Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act). Under this Act, financial institutions which are gualified
public depositories place with the State Treasurer securities which have a market value equal to orin
excess of the average daily balance times the depository collateral-pledging level requirad pursuant
to Chapter 280 as computed and reported monthly or 25% of the average monthly balance,
whichever is greater. The Public Deposit Security Trust Funds have a procedurs lo allocale and
racover fossas in the event of default or insolvency. When public deposits are made in accordance
with Chapter 280, no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof. All City depositories at
year-end were designated as qualified public depositories. The bank balance of deposits insured by
the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation or pursuant to Chapter 280 of the Florida Stalutes was
§221,643 as of September 30, 2003.

Investments

Florida Statutes 218.415 and the City's Investment Policy Resalution # 96-83 authorize investments
in the Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA), Securities and Exchange
Commission registered money market funds, interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of
deposit, direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury, Federal agencies and instrumentalities. repurchase
agreements, collateralized mortgage obligations when the purpose of the purchase is to hold such
investment to maturity, regulated bond mutual funds and investment grade obligations of state and

local governments and public authorities. Additionally, the Pension Trust Funds are authorized to

invest in corporate bonds and equity securities.



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3.

Deatailed notes an all fupds, Continued

(b) Deposits and investments, continued

in accordance with GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial institutions, Investments
(including Repurchase Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, the City's investmenis
ara categorized as follows to give an indication of the level of custodial cradit risik assumed by the

City:

Category 1 Includes investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its
agents in the City's name, or heid by the City's agents in a Depaository Trust Company custadial
account.

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by a counterparty's trust
dapartment or agent in the City's name.

Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by a
counterparty, its trust depariment or agent, but not in the City's name.

Investments in the Local Government Surplus Funds Investment Paol Trust Fund (SBA} ara not
categorized as they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

The City invests fund throughout the year with the Local Government Surplus Funds Investment Pool
Trust Fund (SBA), which is administerad by the State Board of Adrministration, under the regulatory
oversight of the State of Florida. The SBA pool's investments are recorded at amortized cost,
consistent with GASB Statement No. 31, The value of the City's position in the pool, an external "2a-
7" like investment pool, is the same as the vaiue of the pool shares.

Thers were no lossas during the peried due to defauilt by counterparties to investment transactions,
and the City had no other types of investments during the year other than those described above.

Type Category 1 Falr Value

GENERAL INVESTMENTS
US Government Agency Securities $1,415,449 3 1,416,443
INVESTMENTS NOT SuUsJIECT TO
CATEGORIZATION
Pension Investment Pool 10,932,785
Local Govemnment Sufplus Funds Trust Fund
Investment Pogl (S8A) 16,831,602
Tatat Investments $29.180,848
Pius Deposits:

Checking Accounts 221,543

Checking Account: Pension trust funds 83,223
Total Depasits S 304,858
TOTAL Deposits and investments 329,485,712
Plug: Cash on Hand 99,438

TOTAL Cash, Deposits and Investmanis 329,585,150

e




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3.

Detailed notes on all funds, Continued
(@) Deposits and investments, continued

The following schedule reconciles the deposit and investment information above to the City's-wide
State of Net Assets and Siatement of Fiduciary Net Asseals:

i Currant } Restricted | ToraL
Cash & Cash & Cash &
Equivalents  Investmenis Equivalents  Investments .« investments
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General 5 4,314,212 $1.331.6861 3§ - 8 - § 35845,873
2002 $3.825 M GO Debt 236,333 - - - 236,333
Other Governmental 4202327 - - - 4202 327
Total Governmental 8732872 1.331.68681 - - 10,084,533
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Sewer System - - 7,783,017 84,788 7.877.803
Beach Parking - 559,886 = - : 539,886
Total Business-type 559 888 - 7,793 047 84 788 8.437.691
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
General Pension - - 20,908 6,438,012 5,458,920
Police Pansion - - 61,445 4,484 783 4,556,228
Agency Funds - - 47778 - 47 778
Tatal Fiduciary - - 130,131 10,932 798 11,062,925
TOTAL 39312758 51331861 $7.923.148 11017583 § 29585150

{b) Restricted Cash and Investments
Restricted cash and investments of the proprietary funds represent resources to be restricted for
capital improvements, debt service and renewal and replacement.

Sanibel

Sewer

System
Restrictad for Debt Service $ 4,663,801
Restrictad for Renewal and Replacement 132,705
Restricted for Bond and Loan Reserves 1,782,820
Restricted for Rate Stabitization 80,000
Restricted for Capital Projects 1,218,479
Total restricied assets % 7,877,805
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

MNote 3,

Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

(c)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Unrestricted
Motes
Accounts receivable
Bue fram other funds
Due from other governments
Total unrestricted receivables

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Unrastricted
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Total unrastricted
Restricted
Assessments receivable
Total net receivables

Accounts and special assessments receivable

Other
Governmeantal
General Funds Total
3 - 5 2474204 $ 2474204
115,854 128,565. 244,519
2,257,936 - 2,257,838
500.385 282 497 782.882
§ g Q_Z.'l g?g § g,gggggég § g ?gg 441
Sanibel
Sewer Beach Parking
System Fund Total
§ 205782 5§ - § 205,782
14,525 150 140 164.865
220,307 150,140 370,447
12.625.000 - 12.625.000
§1g ng"éﬁ? § 150.140 § gg ggg AAZ

(d) Accounts payable and other accrued labilities

Governmental Activities

Aceounts and contracts payabls
Due to other governments
Accrued abilities

Total

Business-type activities

Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued labilities
Total

2002
$3.825M
General Gther
Obligation  Gowvernment
General Debt al Funds Intal
$ 156,871 3 - § 330,084 § 486,965
- - 110 110
331,537 - 5027 336,564
g 488408 3 . 5335231 S..823639
Sanibel Sewer Beach
Svstam Parking Total
3§ 682,797 3 88,281 § 77,078
401.748 8,558 4103684

-3~
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CiTY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

-

Note 3. Detafied notes on alf funds, Continued

(&) Interiund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The compaosition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2003 is as follows:
Due to/from other funds

Receivablg Fund  Pavable Fund

General
General
General
Generai

Braziflan Pepper Contrat

Enviranmentally Sensitive Land Reasloration
Beach Read Paving Special Assessmant
Sanibel Sewar System

interfund transfars

Transfars In

Nonmaior
Transfars Out Govarnmental
General 3 2,142,100
Nanmajer Governmantal 957,000

Total  §_3.109.100

Pursose for Balance Amount
Awaiting grant reimbursement 5 70844
Awaiting grant reimbursement 101,213
Awaiting final assessment payment Yo 1,383
City's  support of the sewer systam '
primarily ralated o efffuent disposalireuse
as required by regulatory agencies 2,084 5258
Total 32237938

Transfars out from the Generat and from two Nonmajor Governmental Funds, the Franchise Tax and
Occupational License Tax Fund and the Road Impact Fee Fund, are used to provide funding for Debt
Service Funds for which specific or any legally non-ad valorem revenue source is pledged as well as
for funding Capital Projects Funds.

{f) Intergovernmentai Revenues

Goavarnmental Activitias Gensral
QOparating Grants & Shared Ravenuas
Public Safety § 58,52t
Physical Environment 28,578
Culture/Recreation -
Federal shared revenue 64,034
State sharad revenue ) 544,323
Lacal shared ravenua 4 860
Capital Grant Ravenue
Physical Environment -
Other Inter-focal Agreements 2837 147
Total 33478581

Businass-tyne activities

Operating Grants & Shared Ravenues

Transportation

-

2002 $3.825M MNoa-major
General QOther
Oblination Debt  Governmental Tatal

3 - 5 - 5 93.521
- - 28,578
- o 1,775
- - §4,054
§44,323
- - 4,860

2,122,800 233,009
. 82,751
3.2.122 800 S 319528

2,357,860
28151808
§5.121.007

Beach
Parklng

$_149 930

EN




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

a -+

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

{g) Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Govarnmental Activities Balance Ingreases  Decraases Balances
Capital assets, not being depraciated:
Land 320,657 875 $ 284,378 $ - $20,822.253
Construction in prograss - 383,230 .. 381,230
Total capital assats, not being depragiatad 20,557,875 547 808 ‘ s 21,305,483
Capital assets, being depraciated:
Buildings 3,581,280 81,475 {6,241) 3,666,514
imoravements other than bulldings 2,868,142 222,842 {3,798) 3,085,888
infrastructure 8,957,148 - - 8,957.148
VYehicles and equipment 3,862.223 491217 (524 123) 3,829.315
Total capital assets, being depreciatad 19 278.Y93 795,334 {534 164) 19,539,953
Less accumulatad depreciation for:
Buildings ) 1,425,158} (111,681} - (1,536,819}
Improvements other than bulldings {2,928,863) {21,877} - {2,950,742)
Infrastructure {2,342,733) {317,302} - (2,560,035)
Vehicles and eguipmant {1.998.006) (279.317) - {2,277 323
Tatal accumuiatad depraciation {8,694 782} {738.157) - {9,424 919
Tatal capital assels, belng depreciated, nat 10,584.031 83177 {534,184} 10,115,044
Governmental activities capital assels, net 231241908 5712735 354 tH4y 331,430 507
Beginning Ending
Business-type activities Balance Ingreases Decraases Balances
Cagpital assets, not being depracialed:
Land $ 1,337,031 5 10,820 $ - 3 1,347,831
Construction in grograss 258,525 797 7862827 {10288 738} 23,899,335
Total capital assats, not baing depreciated 27,882 828 THB73.447 {10.233788) 25247437
Capital assets, being depraciated:
Buildings 398,240 1,860 - 398,200
improvements other than buildings 436,773 - - 485,775
Infrastructure 18,968,347 10,154,196 {250,000} 28,872,343
Vahicles and equipment 1,823,735 89,050 {18,452} 2,008,353
Total capital assets, being dapraciated 217751158 10,253 208 (258 .452) 31,753,872
Lass accumulatad depraclation for:
Suiidings {141,315} 22,988) 615 {153,887)
improvemants other than buildings | (102,487} {24,339) - {125,808)
Infrastructura (2,978,303} {1,1368.920) (1,564} £4,114.787)
Yehicles and equipmant {1,139.028) (148 581} {2.302} {1.309.891)
Total acsumutated depraciation £4.372.313) {1.332,808) {3,250} (5.715.371)
Total capital assets, being depraciated, net 17,305 805 8822338 (289.702) 25,048,301
Business-type activities capital assats, net 545258833 18595845 (103538490} §51.295.948

~45-




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued
(g) Capital assets, continuad

Depraciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:
Gavernmeantal actlvities:

General government $§ 78,681

Public safety : 104,614

Physical anvironment . 614080 Ty,
Transpartation 400,800
Cultura/recreation 85.022

Total depreciation expense-govemmental activities $_ 730157

Business-type activities:

Sanibel Sewer System 31,278,757
Beach Parking 856,051
Total depraciation expense-business-type activities 51,332,808

(h} Construction Commitments

The City has active consiruction projects as of September 30, 2003. Al year-end, the City's
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Total Remaining

Governmental activities Contract Spent to Date Contract

Capital Project Funds

Ball Field Relocation $ 558,178 $ (383,230) 3 174,948
Road Improvements 106.490 {95.099) 11,391
Total governmental activities $ 664568 .47 $ 186.339
Total Remaining

Business-type activities Coniract Spent to Date Contract

Utility Expansions (1)
Sewer expansion Phase |l Plant (2) $12,650,010 5(12,650,0110) S

Sewer expansion Phase 1iC 6,166,145 (5,642,225) 523,920
Sewer expansion Phase HiA 5.138.367 - 5.138.367
Total business-type activities $23.955.522 $(18.292,235) 53 B7

(1) The sewer expansion projects are financed by State Revolving Loan Funds and Special
Assessments, both to be repaid through a combination of operating revenue, ad valorem
taxes and by the benefited property owners.

(2) The Phase Ii Plant Expansion project was compieted by September 30, 2003, however the

project was awaiting final acceptance by regulatory agencies before it could be placed in
service and is therafore reported as construction work in progress.

~d G~




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3. Detalled notes on alf funds, Continued
(i) Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the City's bonded and other indebtedness for the year
ended September 30, 2003:

General Capital
Obligation  Revenue Notes Leases
Governmental Activities Bonds Bonds Payable -Paable “Total
Original amounts 33.825.000 $3.190.006 $§7.126.092 § 252842 $14.393.934
Debt payable-beginning 5 - $2,188,236 $6,288,515 3§ - §8,478,751
Debt issued 3,825,000 - - 252,842 4,077,842
Debt retired {50.060) (75871) (4.066010) - (4181981
Debt payable-ending 3-775,000 2,112,285 2,222,505 252,842 8,362,612
Less amounts recorded as
current liabilities {80.000) {81.840) (248 713 (54.043) {464 5396)
Long-term debt-ending.  $3.695.000 $2.030.425 $1,973792 '§_198799  §7.898.016
Revenue Notes

Business-tyoe activities Bonds Payable Total

Original amounts $5.620,000 $43503.720 3$49523.720

Debt payable-beginning 5,465,000 31,003,837 38,468,837

Debt issued 5,620,000 8,301,858 14,521,838

Debt retired {5.485.000) (1.539.027) (7.004.027)

Debt payable-ending 5,620,000 38,366,668 43,986,668

Less deferred amounts for:

Issuance discounis {22,793) - {22,795)
Loss on refunding (353.873 (353.873)

5,243,332 38,366,668 43,610,000
Less amounts recordsed as
current liabilities {250.000y (1372427 (1,622.427)
Long-term debt-ending $4993332 $36.994241 §41897,573

- 7=




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3. Delailed notes on all funds, Continued
(i) Long-term Debt, continued

General Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

$3,825,000 General Obiligation Bonds, Series 2002, interest payable varying
from 2.0% to 4.750% due semiannually on August 1 and February 1,
principal payments due annuaily on August 1, collateralized with Voted Debt
Service Ad Valorem Taxes, final payment due Decamber 2031

Revenue Bonds Payable

$3,190,000 - Revenue bonds, Serles 1979, coliateralized by land, franchise
fees and occupational licenses, annual payments of $187 477 tncluding
interast payable at 5%, final payment due December 17, 2020.

Motes Pavable

51,250,000 Promissory Note dated September, 1897, coliateralized by any
legally available non-ad valorem revenue, annual payments of $120,260
including interest payable at 4.9794%, due September 2012.

$1,348,997 note payable to a financial institution, collateralized by the Sanibe!
Causeway Surplus revenues, accrued interest payable at 3.85%; due July
2008,

$850,000 note payable to a financial institution, collateralized by any legally

available non-ad valorem revenue, monthly payments of $5,006 including
interest payable at 4.21%, dus Juiy 2014

Capital Leases Pavable

$252,842 capital lease payable to Leasing 2, Inc. for 2 vegetation grinder. The
lease is collateralized by the related equipment that was capitalized in the
amount of the lease and included as part of the capital assets of the City.
The lease requires annual debt service payment of $54,044 including
principat and interest accruing at 3.07% through November 2007,

Totat General Long-Term Debt

Enterarise Funds - Long-term Debt

Ravenue Bonds Pavable

$5,620,000 Sanibel Sewer Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003,
collateralized by the net revenues of the sewer system which are serial
bonds with interest from 2.0% to 3.9% payable semi-annually, principal
payable from 2004 through 2021.

Less: Deferrad loss on refunding
Unamortizad discount

O

$3.775.000

855,578

855,657

511.270
$2.222 505

$ 252,842
$8.362.812

$5,620,000
(353,873)
(22,795)
$5.243.332 -




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCiIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

(iy Long-term Debt, continued

Enterorise Funds - Long-term Debt, continued

MNotes Pavable

Dishursements, service fees and capitalized Interest on the $13,095,842 State
of Florida revalving loan #080, collateralized by special assessments, ad ,
valorem taxas and the net revenues of the sewer system, acerued ifdterest o
payable at 1.54%; due August, 2022. 14,310,226

Dishursements, service fees and capitalizad interest for a $5,886,759 State of
Florida ravolving loan #504P, collateralized by special assessments, ad
valorem taxes and the net revenues of the sewsr system, accrued intersst
payable at 1.59%; due February, 2020. 5,105,558

Disburserments, service fees and capitalized interest for a $7,980,398 State of
Florida revolving loan #060, collateralized by voted aebt service ad valorem
taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer system,
acerued interest payable at 1.58%; due October, 2021. 7,937,974

Dishursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $5,351,015 State of
Florida revolving loan #0380, collateralized by voted debt service ad valorem
taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer system,
accrued interest payable at 1.54%; due December, 2022, 5,065,585

Disbursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $6,154,336 State of
Florida revolving loan #W/WG120, collateralized by voted debt service ad
valorem taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer
system, accrued interest payable at 1.56%; due June, 2023, 5,154,336

Dishursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $1393,011 State of
Florida reveiving loan # WWG511A, collateralized by voted debt service ad
valoram taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer
system, accrued interest payable at 1.335%, due August, 2023. 193.011

538,368,568
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Note 3. Detlailed notes on all funds, Continued

{iy Long-term Debt, continued

Gavemmental Activities

General Oblication Bonds Ravanue Bands Nolas Bavable

Yaar ending
Saptember 30, Brincioal Interast Princinal Interast Principat Interast

2004 3 80,000 5 138,138 § 81,840 § 105637 & 248,12 § 54,853
2005 85,000 156,558 85,832 101,545 259,566 83,802 ;
2908 85,000 154,858 80,222 87,248 1270,955 72,5‘13 e
2007 85,000 152,843 84,745 2,737 282,740 50,828
2008 90,000 150,735 89,477 88,000 294,978 48,580

2009-2013 485,000 710,602 577,157 360,228 817,189 954857

20142018 580,000 614,485 736,616 200,789 48,255 947

20192023 720,000 474,870 345,274 28,580 - -

2024-2028 §03,000 289,988 - - - -

2029-2033 650,000 53850 = - = -
Total G 3773000 8§ 2905980 % 21122635 § 1074844 S 2990 308 3 457 593

Business-iyne Acliviles

Notas Payable

Ravenua Bonds

Year ending
Septamber 30 Pringigal Interast Brincioai Interast

2004 3 250,000 § 167,408 3 1,372427 3 1,6984.5868
2665 ’ 260,000 162,409 1,432,718 1,634,377
2066 265,000 157,208 1,485,793 1,571,531
2007 27¢.000 151,909 1,581,786 1,505,309
2008 276,600 148,508 1,630,838 1,438,256
2008-2013 1,455,660 32254 9,307,708 §,027,756
20142018 1,650,000 393,489 11,288,327 3,783,138
2019-2023 1,180,000 80,130 10,298 470 1,105,591
Total 3 8820000 § 1907328 B 3RIRGAAR .S I8 T59.408

Capital Leases - The capital lease is recorded at the total present value of future minimum lease
payments. The following schedule shows the present vaiue of these payments at September
30, 2003. There are no capital leases extending beyond 2008.

Toial present value of net
minimum lease

- Governmenial

Yaar Ending Seotembar 30, Agtivitieg

2004 3 34,044

2005 54,044

20086 54,044

2807 54,044

2003 . 54044

270,220

Lass imputed interast (17,378}

§ 252,842




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 3.

Note 4,

Detailed notes on all funds, Continued
(i) Long-Term Debt, continued
Changes in Long-Term Liabilitias

Long-term lability activity for the year ended September 30, 2003, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Bue Within

Bajanesa Additions Reductions  Balancs Qne Year

Governmental activities R - “‘
Lang-tarm deabt 3 8475751 5 4,077,842 S{4,191,881) § 8,362,512 3 484,595
Compensated absences 492 664 - {147, 738) 344,908 251981
Total Govarnmantal S 8980413 5. 4077843 864330737 S A7N7S5IN I 7R STT
Business-type activities

Long-term debt 336,468,837 514,521,838 § (7,380,585 3543510000 $1.822,427
Compensatad absences 85,174 - {11,988} 44 188 -
Total Business-type activiies $38526011 514331858 §(7 302881} 341554138 3§ 1523427

Bond Resolution - Resolutions for various debt obligations establish certain funds and accounts and
determine the order in which certain revenue is to be deposiied into the funds and accounts. The
City has also covenanted to budget and appropriate sufficient non-ad valorem revenue sources to
pay the various debt obligations when due. All required balances at year end were maintained.

Current Refunding - Tha City issued Sewer Utility Ravenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 in the
amount of $5,620,000 at interast rates ranging from 2.00% o 3.90% and maturing in 2021. The
Bonds are collateralized by a lien upon a pledge of the Net Operating Revenues and Impact Fees of
the Sanibel Sewer System. Proceads from the bonds, together with other available funds were used
to refund all of the outstanding §7,185,000 Sanibel Sewer Utility Revenue Refunding and
improvement Bonds, Series 1893. The City purchased U.S. Treasury Obligations that were placed in
an irrevacable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service requirements of the
defeased debt. As a result, the refunded bonds are considerad to be defeased and the liability has
heen removed from the financial statements. This refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt
service payments over the next 18 years by $892,630 and resulted in an economic gain of 5664,713.

OTHER INFORMATION

{a) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assels: errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participatesina
public entity risk peol administered by Florida League of Cities, Inc, with insurance programs for
general/professional liability, automobile, property and workers compensation. The City pays an
annual premium to Florida League of Cities, Inc. for these insurance programs. Participation in this
risk pool is non-assessable. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages as
compared fo the prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. ‘




CiTY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Mote 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
{2} Risk Management, continued

The City retains the risk df loss up {0 a deductible amaount (normally §25,000) with the risk ofioss in
excess of this amount transferred to the pool with limits of Hiability of $5,000,000 per occurrence for
general and professional liability and $5,000,000 for automobile liability.

The Florida League of Cities, Inc. published financial report for the year ended September 30, 2002,
¢an be obtained from Florida League of Cities, Inc., Public Risk Service, 135 East Colonia| Brive,
Orlando, Fiorida 32853-0085. ’

{b} Pension Plans
The City has two {2) defined benefit single-employer pension plans:

s+ General Employees Pension Plan
s Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Flan

The plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports and are not included in any other retirement
system's or entity’s financial report. The City accounts for both plans as pension trust funds;
therefore, they are accounted for in substantially the same manner as proprietary funds with a capital
maintenance measurement focus and employment of the acorual basis of accounting. Plan member
cantributions, employer contributions and contributions from other entities are recognized in the
period in which the coniributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plans. For financial statement purposes, plan assets
are valued at market value for the General Employees and Nunicipal Police Gfficers’ plans, as
reported within the annual trustee statements,

General Employees’ Pension Plan

Current membership is comprised of tha following:

Active employees ar
Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits: 23
Tarminated employees entitied to benefits but not yet receiving them 29

Total 139

52



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 4. QOTHER INFORMATION, Continued
{b) Pension Plans, continued

Plan Descrintion

All full-time employees who are non-sworn police officers, and who have attained age 18 but not
attained age 85, are required to participate in the City's General Employees’ Pension Plan, The Plan
pravides retirement and pre-retirement death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Thersisas
year cfiff vesting in the Plan. The Normal Retrement Benefit of the Plan'is 3% of "Ayerage
Compensation multiplied by the number of years of service (maximum 30 years). Average
Compensation is calculated over all years of service. Cost-of-living adjustments are not provided for
by this plan. This plan and any amendments were adopted by Ordinance of the City Council of the City
of Sanibel. Although the plan is governed by the City, which is responsible for the management of plan
assets, the City has delegated the authorily to manage plan assets to General Employees Pension
Board of Trustees. Al costs of administering the plan are paid from plan assets.

Funding Folicy
Active members ars not reguired to contribute to this Plan. "The City contributes the actuarially
determined amount designated to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, The current

rate is 12.6% of annual coverad payroll.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City has no net pension obligation (caiculated in accordance with GASB No. 27, Accounting for
Pansions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are
contributed each year. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of
the October {1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the Aggregate Actuarial Cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 7.5% investment rate of return, and (b} projected salary increases of 5.6%
including an inflationary factor of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was determined using fair market
values. The Aggregate Actuarial Cost method determines the total cost of the projected pension
benefits of all employees combined. This total cost is then spread over the average future remaining
years to retirement for the employees. ifbenefits are related to compensation, the costis spread as a
leve! percentage of compensation. If benefits ars not related to compensation, the cost isspreadasa
level doflar amount each year.-The Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method does not identify or separately
amortize unfunded actuarial lisbilities. The portion of cost which is attributed to each year is called the
Normal Cost, The City's annual pension cost (APC) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 was

$5404,488.
Annual Pansion Cost Percentage of ARPC Net Pension
Fisgal Year Ending (APC) Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2003 $404,438 100% $ (118,483)
Saptember 30, 2002 383,765 100% {120,407)
September 30, 2001 . 402,299 107% (122,362) _



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Septamber 30, 2003

Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
{b) Pension Plans, continued
Development of Net Peﬁsian Asset (NPA)
This municipal Defined Benefit Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the
adoption of the "Florida Protection of Public Employee Retirement Benefits Act” (Part VIl of Chapter
112, Florida Statutes) in 1980,

The Net Pension Asset (NPA) to date is as follows:

9/30/03
Actuarially Determined Contribution {A) $404,488
Interest on NPA {3,031}
Adjustment to (A) 16.955
Annual Pension Cost 406,412
Centributions Made 404 488
Decrease in NFPA {1,824)
NPA-Beginning of Year 120,407
NPA-Ending of Year $118.483

Concantration of Investmenis

At September 30, 2003, the following are investments (other than U.S. Government and U.S.
Government guaranteed obligations), in any ane organization that represents five percent or more of
net assets available for benefits:

Florida Municlpal Investment Trust Fixed Income 43.56% 52,810,889
State Sireet Global Advisors Equities 56.34% $3,627,123

Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Plan

Current membership is comprised of the following:

Active employees 18
Retirees and beneficiaries of geceased retirees currently receiving benefits: 13
Terminated employses entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 2

Total 34

iy

s,




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
b} Pension Plans, continued
Plan Descrintion

All full-time sworn police officers who have attained age 18 are required o participate in ithe City's
Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Plan. The Plan provides retirement, disability and pre-retirement
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. There is a S-year cliff vesting in the Plan. The Mormal
Retirement Benefit of the Plan is 3% of Average Final Compensation multipied by the number of
years of service (maximum 30 years). Average compensation is calculated by taking the avesage of
the total compensation paid during the 5 highest ysars of service. Cost of living adjustrments are nat
provided for by this plan. This plan and any amendments were adopted by Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Sanibel. This plan is self-trusteed and is administered by the Municipal Police
Officers’ Pension Board comprisad of members elected pursuant to Section 185, Florida Statutes for
local law plans. All costs of administering the plan are pald from plan assets.

Funding Policy

Active members are required to contribute 8% of their compensation fo this Plan until Normal
Retirement Age and 4% therealter. The State of Florida makes contributions from taxes on casualty
nsurance premiums. The City contributes the remaining actuarially determined amount designated
to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The current rate is 18.9% of annual
covered payrolt.

Annua! Pensien Cost and Net Pension QObligation

The City has no net pension obligation (calculated in accordance with GASB Me. 27, Accounting for
Pansions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are
contributed each year. The annual raquired contribution for the current year was determined as part
of the Octaber 1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method.

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return, and (b) projected saiary
increases of 7%, which includes an inflation component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)} is being amortizad as a level
percentage of payroll over a four-year period on a closed basis. The remaining period as of October
1, 2002 was 30 years. The following schedule is provided to disclose the components of the Annual
Pension Cost: -

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as of October 1, 2002 3 51,322
City and State Norma! Cost applicable for fiscal year 2003 199,182
interest an UAAL and Normal Cost 60,040
Sponsor Contributions to the Plan during the year {314,489
interest on sponsor contributions {11.710)
Unfunded Accrued Liability as of October 1, 2003 $ 484,335

..55_




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 4. OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
(b) Pension Plans, continued

Tha City’s Annual Pension Cost (APC) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 was $270,983.

Percentage of APC
Actuarially o Actuariaily
Determined Determined Met Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Contribution Contribution “ Agset (NPA) -
September 30, 2003 $215,569 122% 3 {55414
September 30, 2002 198,153 100% ——
September 30, 2001 185,087 100% —

Cancentration of Investments

At September 30, 2003, the following are investments at market value (other than U.S. Government
and U.S. Gavernment guaranteed abligations), in any one organization, thatrepresent five percentor
more of net assets available for benefits:

SunTrust Fixed Income 38.59% 51,734,504
SunTrust Equities 61.41% 52,760,279

{c} Miscellanecus Revenues

Other revenue In the Government Fund types at September 30, 2003 is as follows:

2002 33.825M
Ganeral Other
Otligation Governmental
Generai Debt Sarvice Funds Totai
Impact Fass ‘ 3 - § -5 177,000 3 177.0C0
Contributions & Donations 1,601 e 64,803 65,804
Rents & Royalties 14,478 — — 14,476
Investment eamings 125,315 2,085 34,878 162,279
Sale of surplus equipment 12,430 - — 12,490
insurance proceeds far loss 4,157 - — 4,157
Refund of prior year axpendliuras 28,140 - 53,885 82,039
Other 4 338 o - 4338
Total Other Revenus te. & 1901138 8 2085 $ 330,820 % 522 A03

(d) Restatements

Due to provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, the beginning net assets of governmental activities
were restated to include the governmental long-term debt and governmental fixed assets as of
September 30, 2002, Two funds previously classified as expendable trust funds were reclassified
as special revenue funds under GASB Statement No. 34.




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 4. OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
{d) Resiatements, continued

One fund, previously classified as an enterprise fund, was reclassified as a special revenue fund
hecause it was deemed a more appropriate classification under GASB Statement Meo. 34. In
addition, the portion of the Bond Anticipation Note repaid from sources other than long-term
borrowings should have been reported as a fund liability, not in the general long-term debtaccount
group. . .

¢
Gavernmental Funds

Fund Balances as previously reported, September 30, 2002 3 10,252,976
Fund ievel restatements
Add Flexible Spending Account Fund {7) -

Add Father Madden Estate Fund (%) 29,353
Add Below Market Rate Housing (BMRH) Fund ("} 2,595,508
Prior period adjustment
Bond Anticipation Note reclassification (1.770.800)
Fund balances as restated, September 30, 2002 3 11,107,037

("} Reclassified from Trust Funds
(™) Reclassified from Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds

Fund Equity as previously reported, September 30, 2002 3 22,478,080
Fund level restatements

Less BMRH Fund (1.064.472)
Fund Equity as restated, September 30, 2002 S 21413608

{e) Commitments and Conlingencies

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to compliance audit by grantor
agencies, principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts
already collacted, might constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The City does notbelieve any
contingent liabilities are material.

A claim has been made by a construction contractor for an amount in excess of the contractual
amount. The claim alleges construction delays and increased costs due to weightrestrictionsas a
result of the Sanibel Causeway iimited access. The claim asks for an additional payment of
approximately $1.2 million. Management of the City has retained consulling engineers to evaluats
the veracity of the contractor's claim. The City's counse! has advised that at this stage, he cannot
offer an opinion as to the probably outcome. Management of the City is vigorously defending its
position. : .




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

Note 4, OTHER INFORMATION, Continued

{f} Subsequent Event

in December 2003, the City accepted title to land owned by its discretely presented component
unit, Community Housing and Resource, inc. (CHR). In exchange, the City cancelled its note
receivable from CHR in the amount of $2,474,204. The City has recognized a loss of
approximately 371,000 at September 30, 2003 as a resuit of this exchange. This loss represents
the difference between the appraisad value of the land and the carryimg amount of lthe note

raceivable, :

«58~
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

. CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
GENERAL EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroli
Dats @ (0} (o-a) (alb) S ole)
10/01/03 6,458,919 $6,458,919 § - 100.00% $3,592,100
10/01/02 5,661,751 5,681,751 - 100.00% 3,249,973
10/01/01 5,737,504 5,737,504 - 100.00% 3,033,837
10/01/00 4,938,323 4,938,323 - 100.00% 2,701,065
10/01/99 4,271,871 4,271,871 - 100.00% 2,847,122
10/01/98 3,695,783 3,695,793 - 100.00% 2,852,226
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER AND OTHER
CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES
Year Annual
Ended Required City Perceniage
Seotember 30 Contribution Contribution Contributed
2003 $ 404,488 § 404,488 100.00%
2002 383,765 383,765 100.00%
2001 402,299 432,392 107.48%
2000 515,521 610,001 118.33%
1999 532,508 532,508 100.00%
1998 394,870 394,870 100.00%

UAAL as
aY% of
coverad
FPayroll

. «({h-alc

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

g~




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
10/01/03
10/01/02
10/01/01
10/01/00
10/01/98
10/G1/88

. CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS PENSION PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

.Actuariai

UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded a % of
Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered  coversd
Assets {AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Fayroll
() )] (b-a} (a/b) o fed + ({b-a)e)
§ 5,142,892 $5,627,227 § 484,335 91.39% '$1,150,972  42.08%
4,968,713 5,520,045 551,332 90.01% 976,875 58.44%
4,958,770 5,065,871 109,201 §7.84% 1,011,819  10.79%
4,697,598 4,814,832 117,234 87.57% 1,039,031  11.28%
4,165,354 4,498,591 333,237 82.55% 1,039,115  32.07%
3,651,746 3,984,693 332,947 91.64% 837,551  35.51%
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER AND OTHER
CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES
Year Annual
Ended Required City State Percentage
September 30 Contribution Confribution Contribution Contributed
2003 $ 250,024 §$ 270,983 § 35355 (%) 122.08%
2002 234,508 189,153 35,355 (%) 100.00%
2001 215,361 185,087 30,274 (%) 100.00%
2000 222,989 192,715 30,274 (%) 100.00%
1999 218,425 188,151 30,274 (%) 100.00%
1998 174,721 144 447 30,274 100.00%

(*) "Frozen" per Chapter 185, florida Statutes, as amended.
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SCHEDULES







NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special ravenue funds are usad to account for specsﬁc ravenuas that ars legally restricted to ex-
penditure for particular purpaoses.

*

Historical Commitize - to account for receipts and disbursemants of donations specifically
designatad to the use and under the direction of the Historical Cammittes with City Council
approval.

Recreaation Center Donations—{o account for the rsceipt and disbursemeant of denations
specifically designated for use by the Recrsation Comptex Dw::non of the Parka and
Recrzation Department. S e
Road Impact Fae - to account for revenue collactad by the City at the time of building pemit
issuance based on a County-wide ordinance assessing road impact fees which funds are
used to improve roads on Sanibel.

Community Park Impact Fees - to account for revenue collectad by the City at the tims of
building permit issuance based on a county-wide ordinance assessing community park impact
faas which funds are used to improve community parks.

Flexible Spending Account - to account for funds withheld from employees’ wages on a pra-
tax basis for eligible unresimbursed medical and dependent cars expenses,

Father Madden Estats - {o account for funds bequeathad to the City for tha humane carz of
stray dogs and feral cats.

Franchisa Tax and Occupational License Tax Rsvenue - to account for revenues raceived
from franchise taxes, occupational licenses and business registration fees which ravenues are
partially pledged ta fund debt service on the City's 1979 §3.19M bond issue and subordinately
to other Notes to which is pledged any other legally available non-ad valorem ravanue.

Elementary School Ball Park Maintenance - to account for the operation and maintanance of
the ball fislds, formerly Lee County facilities, pursuant to an Intertocal Agresment with Lae
County.

Betow Market Rate Housing - to account for funds provided under contract to Community
Housing and Resaurces, inc. to administer the City's Below Markst Rate Housing Program.




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of rescurces for and the payment of principal and
interast on general long-t2rm debt.

*

1997 $1.25M Pauigen Land Purchase - ta account for the pa /ment of principal and interast on a $1,250,000,
18-year note which beara mtﬂrﬁst at 4.98%. Repayment sourge is from any legally available non-ad valorem
revenue.

1879 FMHA Revenue Bond Issue - to account for payment of';::rincipal and interest of $3,180,000 Ravenus
Bonds, Series 1979, bearing intarast at 5%. Funding is from franchise {ax and occupational license ravanue.

3rd Series 1997 Notzs A & B - to account for the paymant of prncipal and interast on the series A of
$59,034, bearing intarast of 4.76% for a term of 2 years s and the series B note of $61,025, bearing interast of
4.83% for a tamm of 3 years. Rapayment source is frem any legally available non-ad valoram ravanue.

SunTrust notes for BMRH - o account for payment of principal interast an two notes, $1,348,997 ak 3.85%
and $850,000 at 4.21% for terms of 10 and 15 years respectively. Payment is frcm Caubewag Surplus and
any legally avallable non— Ad Valoram ravenusa,

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capitai Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and/or construction of major cagital facili-

ties.

*

Capital Planning & Asset Acquisition - to account for financial resources to be used {or on-going andfor

routine capital acquisitions such as vehicie replacement and environmentally sensitive land.

Transpartation Capital Projects - to account for financial resources to be used for the maintenance and
upgrading of roads and strests, including drainage, resurfacing, reshelling, bike paths and the profsssional
engineearing cost associatad tharewith.

Periwinkle Bika Path & Road Maint=2nance - to accaurnt for financial resources o be used for maintznanca
and improvements to the road and bike path on Periwinkle Way.,

Sanibei-Captiva Road Projact - to account for financial resourcas to be used for rasurfacing Sanibel-
Captiva Road.

Tarpon Bay Road Repaving - to account for financial resources to be used for repaving Tarpon Bay Road.

Brazilian Pepper Confrol - to account for financial resaurces to be used to eradicals the exotic (nen-native)
and invasive plant called Brazilian pepper from the island.

Environmentally Sensitive Land Restoration - to account for financial resources to be used to restors land
acquirad by the City in the environmentally sensitive land district to its natural stats,

Pond Apple Park - to account for financial rescurces usad to acquire gight acras of land know as Pond Ap-
ple Parl. _—

Gulf Pinas/Gulf shores/West Gulf Drive Beach Restoration - to account for financial resources from the
issuance of debt as well as from veoluntary coniributions for the Beach Rastoration Special Assessment
Project.

Beach Road Paving Special Assessment - to account for financial resources from special assessment for
paving the shallrock road.

Shell Harbor Canai Dredging - to account for financial resources for dredging the main channel and canals
in the Shell Harbor subdivision. ] -
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Notes receivable

Due from other governmenis

Total assels

LIABILITIES

Accounts payabie
Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved

Debt service

Notes receivable
Unreserved, undesignatad

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund
balances

CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2003

" NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue

Recraation Community Flexible
Historical Center Road Park Spending
Commitiee  Donations  Impact Fees Impact Fees - Acgount
§ 248082 § 49902 $ 150,568 $ 321,205 $§ 1,429
$ 248082 § 49902 % 150568 $ 321,205 $ 1,420
3 5,089 § - S - S - 3 -
110 - - - -
- - - - 1,429
- - 149,138 254,366 -
5,198 - 149,138 254,366 1,429
242,883 49,802 1,430 66,839 -
242,883 49,902 1,430 66,839 -
§ 243082 § 49902 § 150568 5 321205 $ 1429

....64_




Special Revenue

Page 1 of 3

Franchise ,
Tax and Elementary Below
Father Occupational School Market
Madden License Tax Ball Park Rate
Estate Revenue Maintenance Housing .. Total
§ 28550 § 285,863 § 11,808 3 63,366 § 1,143,773
. 17,813 - 10,852 28,665
- - . 2,474,204 2,474,204
- - 47,497 - 47,497
$§ 28550 § 284,676 $ 59,305 § 2550422 § 3,694,139
8 - $ - 5 9,542 § 18 $ 14,656
N . . - 110
- - 3,598 - 5,027
- 226,932 - - 630,436
- 225,832 13,147 18 850,229
- - - 2474204 2,474,204
28,550 57,744 46,158 75,200 569,706
28,550 57,744 45,158 2,550,404 3,043,910
§ 28550 3§ 284675 $ 59,305 § 2,550,422 S 3,594,139

-65...




© - .NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2003

Debt Servica

1997 31.25M
Pauisen

Land Bond

Purchase

1979 FMHA
Ravenue

issue

3rd Series
1997 Notes
A&RB

SunTrust
Notes
for
BMRH

1
b,

A otal

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents g
Accounts receivable

Notes receivable

Due from other governments

53,752 $§ 200,503 $

- -

$

254,255

-

Total assets $

53,752 § 200,503 §

$

254,255

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3
Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities

Deferrad revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved

Debt service

Notes receivable
Unraserved, undesignated

53,752 200,503

- -

254,255

Total fund balances

53,752 200,503

254,255

Totat liabilities and fund

batances 3

53752 $ 200,503 §

$

254,255
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Capital Projects

Periwinkle
Capital Transportation  Biks Path & San-Cap Targon Brazilian
Assat Capital Road Road Bay Road  Pepper
Acguisition Projects Maintenanca Project Repaving Conirol

§ 1,242277 § 503,763 § 503876 § 177,503 § 243323 § -
97,607 - - - - -

- - - - -

‘ - - - - - 85,000
$ 1338884 § 503,763 $§ 503676 § 177,503 §$ 243323 $ 85000

$§ 20020 § 114731 § 24,205 $ - $ 94,163 5 14,486
38,323 - - . 9,510 .

- - - - - 70,644

58,343 114,731 24,205 - 103,673 _ 85,130

1,281,541 389,032 479,471 177,503 139,650 (130)

1,281,541 389,032 479,471 177503 _ 139.650 (130)

§ 1335884 § 503.?53‘% 503,678 3 177,503 3§ 243,323 § 85,000

-§7=




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
" NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2003

Capital Projects

Environmentally Gulf Pines/Gulf
Sensitive Sharas/West Gulf
Land Pond Apple Drive Beach
Resforation Park . Restoration .
ASSETS '
Cash and cash equivalents  § - $ - 3 63,568
Accounts receivable - - -
Notes receivable -
Due from other governmentis 150,000 - -
Total assets : 5 150,000 § - 3 83,568
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabile S - 3 - $ -
Retainage payabie - - -
Due to other funds 101,213 - -
Due to other governments - - -
Accrued liabilities - - -
Defarred revenue - - -
Total liabilities 101,213 - -
FUND BALANCES
Reserved
Debt service - - -
Notes receivable - - -
Unreserved, undesignatad 48,787 - 63,568
Total fund balances 48 787 - 63,568
Total liabilities and fund
balances 8 150,000 § - 8 63,568

-5




Capital Projects

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

3 4,202,327
128,565
2,474,204
282,497

$ 7,087,593

Beach Road Shell
Paving Harbor
Special Canal
Assessments Dradging Total

$ - $ 70,189 § 2,804,299

2,293 - 99,900

- - 235,000

S 2293 $§ 70,183 § 3,139,198

$ - $ - S 267,605

- - 47,833

1,383 - 173,240

78 - 78

1,461 - 488,756

832 70,189 2,650,443

832 70,189 2,650,443

$ 2293 $ 70,183 § 3,139,199

3 282,261
47,833
173,240

110

5,027

630,514

1,138,985

254,255
2,474,204
3,220,149

5,948,608

5 7,087,593

Page 30of 3




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

COMB!N&NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES N FUND EAi.ANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Spacial Ravenus

Franchise
Tax and
Recreation Community Father Occupational
Histarical Center Road Parik Madden License Tax
Committee  Dcnations  Impact Fees Impact Fees Estats Reveanue
REVENUES
Franchise taxes 5 - 3 - § - g - - S “ 3 478,854
Qccupational licenses - - - wr “., 247,388
Intergovernmental 1,775 - - - . -
Charges for services 5,558 - - - - -
Fines and forteitures - - - - - 3,188
impact faes - 177,000 - - -
investment eamings 7. 937 358 1,430 1,838 280 2,481
Refund of prigr year's expenditures 81 - - - - -
Donations 44 265 20,538 - - - -
Total revenuas 80,598 20,896 178,430 1.839 280 731.820
EXPENDITURES
Current
Economtic environment - - - - - -
Human services - - - - 1,083 -
CulturefRecraation 110,264 17,631 - - “ -
Capital Qutlay : - - - - - -
Debt Service
Principai retirerment - - - - - -
Interast charges . - - - - - -
Total expenditures 110,254 17,651 - - 1.083 -
kbxcass (dehiciency) of ravanue ovar i
{under) expenditures {49,568) 3,245 178,430 1,839 (803) 731,920
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transferin 66,221 - - 65,000 - -
Operating transfzrs out - - (177.000) - - {790,000)
Total other financing sources {uses) 688,923 - (177,000} £5.000 - {790.000) .
Met change in fund balances 17,253 3,245 1,430 66,839 {303) {53,080)
fund balances, October 1 225,628 48,657 - - 29,353 115,824
fund balances, Ssptember 30 $ 242883 3 49802 § 1430 3 68832 § 28530 3 57,744
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Special Ravenue Debt Service
Elementary Below 1897 $1.25M 1873 FMHA SunTrust
Schaol Markat Paulsen Ravenue  3rd Series Motes
Ball Park Rate Land Bond 1997 Notes for
Maintenance Housing Total Purchase Issue A&B BMRH Totai
5 - - 478,854 5 - - 3 - $ - 3. -
- - 247,386 - - - .y, -
82,751 - 84,525 - - - - ; -
- 9,817 18,175 - - - 59,642 59,642
- - 3,189 - - - - .
. - 177,000 - - - - -
375 94 14,804 513 862 340 - 1,815
. . 51 - . . . .
- - 54,803 - - - - -
83.126 9,711 1,085,798 813 862 340 59,642 §1,457
. 285,701 285,701 - - - - .
- - 1,083 - - - - -
166,934 - 284,849 - - - - -
- - - 73,989 75,069 2,802 184,111 316,981
- - - 45,287 111,508 511 59,546 217,952
166,934 285 701 581,633 120,286 187,477 3413 223,757 534,833
{83.808) (275.980) 505,185 (119,873) (186,815) (3.073)  {184,118) _{473,476)
80,000 230,886 422,809 125,000 187,477 4,000 164,115 480,592
- - (867.000) - - - - -
50,000 230,886 {54;;_@2) 125,000 187 477 4,000 164,115 430,592
(23.808) (43,104) {38,026) 5,327 B82 927 - 7.118
69,966 2,595,508 3,082,938 48,425 159,641 {927) - 247,139
S 53,752 § 200503 § - 3 - 3 284285

3

46,158 § 2,550404 35 3,043.810




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA'\ICES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

REVENUES

Franchise taxes

Occupationat licenses
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and fortailures

Impact faes

Investment eamings

Refund of prior year's axpendituras
Donations

Total revenues

EAPENDITURES
Current
Ecanamic environment
Human services
Culturs/Recraation
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal retirement
Interest charges

Total expenditures

Capital Projects

Capital
Asset

Acguisition

Transportation

Capitai
Projects

Pariwinkle
Biks Path &
Road
Maintenance

San-Cap

Road

Project

Tarpon
Bay Road
Repaving

- S

245,940

9,794

2,878

g . -

255,734

2,878

1,070,282

518,529

165,474

-

200,026

-

110,298

1,070,282

519.529

165474

208,026

110.998

=xcass (deficizncy) of favenue over

{under) expenditures (814.548) (518,851) {161,813)  (208.420) _ (110.350)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Ogperating transfer in 625,873 610,408 - 400,000 250,000
Operating transfers out - - - - -

Total cther financing sources (uses), 525,873 610,406 - 400,000 250,000

Net change in fund halances {188,673} {5,245} £161,813) 191,580 139,650

395.277
389,032 §

841,284
479,471

1.470.216
§ 1,281,541 3§

£14.077) -
$ 177,503 S 135.650

Fund balances, October 1
Fund balances, September 30
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Capital Projects

Gulf Pines/
Environmentally Guif Shpras/ Beach Road Shell Total
Brazilian Sensitive West Guif Paving Harbor Nonmajor
Papper Land Pond Apple  Drive Beach Special Canal Govarnmeantal
Conirel Rastoration Park Rastoration Assessments Dredging Total Funds
- 3 - S - ) - 5 - 3 - § - 3 478,854
- - - - - - . o, 247,388
85,000 150,000 - - - - - 235,000 o 318,526
- - - - - . 245,940 321,757
- - - - - - - 3,188 -
: - - - - - - 177,000
47 - - 433 3 189 18,252 34,878
- - 53,838 - - - 53,838 53,899
- - - - - - - 54,803
85,047 150,000 53.838 433 3 189 553,037 1.701.282
- - - - - - - 283,701
- - - - - - - 1,083
- - - - - - - 204,849
292,311 229,289 - - - - 2,698,908 2,696,909
. - - - . - - 316,981
- - - - - - - 217,852
292,311 225.289 - - - - 2,696,909 3,813,475
(207,254} {79,289) 53,838 433 3 189 {2.143.872) £2.112,183). -
174,420 75,600 - - - 70,000 2,205,699 3,109,100
. “ . - - - - {967.000)
174,420 75.000 “ - - 70.000 2,205,699 2,142,100
(32,844) {4,289) 53,838 433 3 70,188 61,827 29,917
32,714 53,078 (53,838) 63,135 829 - 2,588,616 5,818,691
S (130) $ 48,787 § - 3 53,568 $ 832 $ 70,188 § 2,550,443 $ 50485808




REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
investment earnings

Refund of prior year expenditures

Donations
Tatal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Total expenditures

Excess (danciency) of ravenue over

{under) expenditures

CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHAMNGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended Septamber 30, 2003

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfer in

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, October 1

Fund balances, September 30

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)
kS - 3 1,775 § 1778 8§ -
10,000 10,000 . 6,558 »(3,442)
2,000 2,000 7.937 5,837
“ - 51 61
36,300 42,397 44,265 1,868
48,500 56,172 50,586 4,424
117,000 124 672 110,264 14,408
{68.500) {88.500) {43,668) 18,832
66,923 56,823 66,923 -
{(1.577) {(1,877) 17,255 18,832
2,577 2,577 225,628 223,051
3 1,000 S 1,000 § 242,883 § 241,883

1%




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
RECREATION CENTER DONATIONS
. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year £nded September 30, 2003

Variance with

5
Fd ¥

Final Budget -
Budge!s Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)

REVENUES
Investment earmings 3 500 § 500 § 358 % {142)
Donations 24,500 24,300 . 20,538 o {3.862)

Total revenues 25,000 25,000 20,896 {4,104)
EXPENDITURES
Current

Culture/Recreation 20,100 20,100 17,651 2,449
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures 4,900 4,900 3,245 {1,653)
Fund balances, October 1 41,468 41,488 48,657 5,191

Fund balances, September 30 3 45,366 § 45,366 3 45,902 3 3,536

"
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
ROAD IMPACT FEES
SCHERULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Endad September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negalive)
REVENUES
impact fees S 177,000 3 177,000 § 177,000 § -
tnvestment earmings - - 1 ,430 . 1,430
Total revenues : 177,000 177.000 178,430° 1430
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Cperating transfers out {177.000) {(177.000) {177,000) -
Net change in fund balances ‘ - - 1,430 1,430
Fund balances, Oclober 1 A - - - -
Fund balances, September 30 S - 3 - 5 1,430 § 1,430

T8

"




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMMUNITY PARK IMPACT FEES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Endad September 30, 2003

REVEMNUES
intergovermnmenial
Impact feas
Investment samings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Cultura/Recraation

kxcess [deticiency) of ravanue over
{undar) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfer in

Net change in fund balances
Fung balancas, October 1

Fund balancas, September 30

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgsts Positive
Original Finzl Actual {Negativa)
3 35,000 3 35,000 § - 3 {35,000)
100,000 100,000 .- ,
- - .1.83¢9 ‘41,839
135,000 135.000 1,839 {33,181)
200.000 200,600 - 200,000
(65.000) (55.000) 1,838 158,839
65,000 63,000 §5,000 -
- - 86,839 166,839
5 - 3 - 3 66,839 & 168,838

-fT~
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
FRANCHISE TAX AND OCCUPRPATIONAL LICENSE TAX REVENUE
SCHEDULE OF REVE\EUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAMCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal . Finai Actual {Negativa)
REVEMNUES
Franchise taxes $ 445000 § 445000 3 478,854 3§ 33,854
Occupational Heenses 255,000 255,000 . 247,380 (? 814}
Fines and forteitures 2,200 2,200 3, 189 ' 989
Investment earmings 2,400 2,400 2,491 g1
Total ravenues 704,600 704,600 731,820 27,320
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out £790.000) (790,000} {790,000} -
Net change in fund balances {85,400) {(85,400) (58,080) 27,320
Fund balances, October 1 103,281 103,281 115,824 12,543

Fund balances, September 30 3 17,881 3 17,881 § 57,744 § 39.853

1
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BALL PARK MAINTENANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUMD BALANCES
. BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended September 3G, 2003

Vartance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original ~ Final Actual {Nagative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental S 92,746 5 92,746 § 82,751 § {9,985)
Investment earnings - - -+, 375 375
Total revenues 92,748 02,748 83,128 » {9.620)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture/Recreation 183,526 195,141 166,934 28,207
kxcess (dehciency) of revanue gvar
(under} expenditures {90,780) (102,395) (83.808) 18,587
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Cperating transferin 80,000 60,000 80,000 -
Net change in fund balances {30,780) {42,395) (23,808) 18,587
Fund balances, Octobef? 36,123 47,738 69,956 22,228
Fund balances, September 30 3 5343 § 5343 § 46,158 § 40,815

"




CiTY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
BELOW MARKET RATE HOUSING
SCHEDULE OF REVEMUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
© L BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positiva
Original Final Actual {Negativa)
REVENUES
Charges for services 3 - 3 10,000 § 8,817 § (383)
Investment earnings - 75 -, 94 <, 18
Total revenues - 10.075 9,711 '(364)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Ecoangmic environment - 211,978 285,701 {73,723)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures - (201,803) (275.990) (74.087)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - 230.836 230,886 -
Net change in fund balances - 28,983 {45,104) {74,087)
Fund balances, October 1 - 49,689 2,585,508 2,545,819
Fund balancas, September 30 3 - 3 78672 5 2550404 5 24741732

1}




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
1997 $1.250M PAULSEN LAND PURCHASE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budge! -
Budgets Pasitive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings s 1,000 3 1,000 5 813 § (3873
EXPENDITURES '
Debt Service
Principal retirement 73,974 73,974 73,909 {25)
interest charges 49,336 49,338 45,287 3,049
Total expendituras 123,310 123,310 120,288 3,024
Excass (daticiency) of ravenue over
{under) expenditures {122.310) (122,310} (118,673) 2,637
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 125,000 125,800 125,000 -
Met change in fund baiances 2,680 2,880 5,327 2,837
Fund balances, October 1 {1.858) {1.859) 48 425 50,284

fund balances, Septemiber 30 3 831 $ 831 § 53,752 § 52,921

L1l




CIiTY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
1879 FMHA REVENUE BOND ISSUE
SCHEDULE OF F{EVENL}ES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budgst -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actuai (Negative)
REVENUES
Invesiment earnings 3 5000 §$ 5,000 § B2 § {4,138)
EXPENDITURES S
Debt Service
Princioal retirement 77,943 77,943 75,969 1,974
Interaest charges 108,584 109,584 111,508 {1,924)
Total expendiiures 187.527 187,527 187,477 50
bxcess (detzcaency) of ravenue over
{under) expenditures (182,527) {182,527) (186,815) (4,088)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 187,477 187,477 187,477 -
Net change in fund balances 4,550 4,850 8682 (4,088)
Fund balances, October 1 7.561 7.561 169 841 182,080

Fund balances, September 30 5 12511 3§ 12,511 § 200,503 5 187,992

-32-
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CITY OF SAMIBEL FLORIDA
3RD SERIES 1897 NOTES A& B
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended Seplember 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budgst -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual {Negativa)
REVENUES
Investment eamings $ - 3 - s 340 § 340
EXPENDITURES "
Debt Service -
Principal retirement 3,035 3,035 2,902 133
Interest charges 41 41 511 {470}
Total expenditures 3.078 3.078 3.413 {337)
t-xcess (deticiency) of revenus aver
{under) expendiiures {3.078) (3,078) (3,073) 3
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 4,000 4,000 4,000 -
Net change in fund balances 924 924 927 3
fund balances, Qctober 1 (924) {824) {927) {3)
Fund balances, September 30 3 - 5 - $ - 3 -

44
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CiTY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
SUNTRUST NOTES FOR BMRH
SCHERULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budgst -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

REVENUES
Charges for services 3 - ] 63,000 3 59,842 8 (3.358)
EXPENDITURES .
Debt Service -

Pringipal ratirement - 188,528 164,111 24,418

Interest charges - 93,183 59,648 33,537

Total expendituras - 281,712 223,757 57,955
kxcass (dehciency) of ravenue over
(under) expenditures - (218.712) (184,115) 54,597
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - 164,114 164,115 1
Net change in fund batanges - {54,538) - 54,598

Fund batances, Cctaber 1 - - - N

Fund batances, September 30 3 - 5 (54,538) § - 8 54,558

1"




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
CAPITAL ASSET ACQUISITION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES
: BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgels Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovermmental $ 161,500 8 101,500 § - $  (101.500)
Charges for sarvices - 78,178 . 245,840 ., 167,762
Investment earnings 1,000 1.000 - 9,794 C 8,794
Totai revenues 102,500 180,678 255,734 75,056
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 1,868,700 1,628,530 1,070,282 558,248
kxoess (daticiency) of ravanue over
(under) expenditures (1,766,200)  (1,447.852) (814,548) 633,304
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
QOperating fransfer in 944,221 £§25,873 525,873 -
Net change in fund balances {821,879) {821,979) (188,675) 633,304
Fund balances, October 1 478,879 478,879 1,470,216 893,237
Fund balances, September 30 3 (345,000} 5 {345,000) § 1,281,541 § 1,626,541

L3
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXRPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgetls Paositive
Qriginal Final Agtuzl {Negative)
REVENUES
investment earnings 3 3000 3§ 3.000 3 2878 § {122)
EXPENDITURES o
Capital Cutfay 890,000 890.000 619.529 270,471
Excass (dehiciency) of revenus over
(under) expenditures {887.000) (887,000) (618,651} 270,349
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
Operating transfer in 810,408 810,408 510,408 -
Net change in fund balances (276,584) (276,594) (6,245) 270,349
Fund balances, October 1 276,504 278,594 395,277 118,883

Fund balances, September 30 s - 3 - ] 388,032 5 389,032

~35-
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

PERIWINKLE BIKE PATH & ROAD MAINTENANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

REVENUES
Imvestment 2arnings

EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutlay

E=xcess (denciency) of ravenue over
{under) expenditures

Fund balances, Octaber 1

Fund balances, September 30-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeis Fositive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

3 5500 § 5508 § 3861 § {1,839}

711,059 711,059 165.474 545,585

(705,359) (705,659) {161.813) 543,748
705,558 705,559 841,284 {64,275)

3 - 3 - 3 479,471 § 479471




CiTY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
SAN-CAP ROAD PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive

Qriginal Final Actual {Negativa)
REVENUES
investment earnings 3 - § “ S 506 3 8086
EXPENDITURES T Y
Capital Outlay 440,000 400,000 209,026 190,974
Excess {¢deficiency) of revenus over
(under) expenditures {400,000) (400,000) - (208,420) 191,580
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfer in 400,000 400,000 400,000 -
Nat change in fund balances - - 191,580 191,580
Fund balances, October 1 - - {14,077} {14.677)
Fund balances, September 30 3 - 3 - ) 177,503 § 177.503

kL
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
TARPON BAY ROAD REPAVING
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 3G, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Nagative)

REVENUES
Investment eamings 3 - 3 - S 848 3§ 648
EXPENDITURES SN
Capital Qutlay 250,000 250,000 140,508 138,002
Excess {daficiency) of ravanue over
(under) expenditures {250.000) (250,000) {110,350) 138,650
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfer in 250,000 250,600 250.000 -
Net change in fund balances - - 139,650 139,650

Fund balances, October 1 - - - -

Fund balances, September 30 S - S - 3 139,630 $ 138,650

4




CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
BRAZILIAN PEFPER CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Paositive
Originai Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5 40,000 § 125,000 3 85,000 3 {40,600)
investment earnings - - . 4T . 47
Total ravenues 40,000 125,000 85,047 (35.953)
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outiay 240,000 325,000 292,311 32,689
Excess (deticiency) of ravenue over
(under) expenditures {200,000} (200,000 (207.264) (7,264)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 174,420 174,420 174,420 -
Net shange in fund balances {25,580) {25,580) (32,844) (7.284)
Fund balances, October 1 25,580 25,580 32,714 7,134

Fund balances, September 30 ) - 3 - S {(130) § {130)

"
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE LAND RESTORATION
SCHE{)ULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive

Qriginal Final Actual (Negative}
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 3 75.000 8 75.000 S 150,000 $ 75,000
EXPENDITURES o R
Capital Outlay 150,000 150,000 229,289 (79,289)
kxcess (gehciency) of revenus over
(under) expenditures {75,000) (75,000} (79,289) (4,289)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 75,000 75,000 75,000 -
Net change in fund balances - - (4,289) (4,289)
Fund balances, October 1 - - 53,075 53,076

Fund balances, September 30 g - 3 - 3 483787 3 48,787

b1
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
SHELL HARBOR CANAL DREDGING
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended Saptember 30, 2003

Varlance with

Final Budgset -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
nvestment earnings S - S - 3 189 § 189
Special assassments 140,000 140.000 .- = {140,000)
Total revenues 140,000 140,000 189 (138.811)
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 210.000 210,000 - 210,000
EXcess {dehcency) of ravanue over
{under) expenditures {(70,000) {70,000) 189 70,189
OTHER FINANCING SOURGES {USES) .
Operating transfer in 70,000 70,000 70,000 -
MNet change in fund balances - - 70,189 70,189
Fund balances, Oclober 1 - - - -
Fund balances, Septamber 30 3 - g - 5 70,189 5§ 70,188

....92_
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Pension trust funds are used to account for the assets of the public employse
retirement systems.

AGENMCY FUNDS

4
d

Agency funds are used to account for assets held y the City in thie capacitf of
and agent for other governments, private organizations or individuals.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

September 30, 2003

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at market value
Mutual funds:

Equity
Pogled/Common/Commingled Funds:

Fixed income

Equity

Total investments at fair value

Raceivables

Total assels

LIABILITIES
Refunds payable and other liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

Pansion Trust Funds Total
Municipal Pension
General Police Trust
Employeses Officers Funds
S 20908 § 61445 § 82353
3,627,123 227,413 3,854,536
2,510,888 1,734,504 4,545,393
- 2,532,866 2,532,860
5438012 4,494 783 10,832,795
- 3.888 3.888
6,458,920 4,560,118 11,019,038
- 2,381 9,381
3 5458820 § 4550,735 § 11008653
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CiTY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

. COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES N FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

. FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employar
State of Florida
Plan membears

Total coniributions

Investment incomea
Net increase in fair value of investments
Interest, dividends and miscellaneous
Total investment earnings (loss)
Less investment expense
Net investment sarnings {loss)
Total additions {deletions)
DEDUCTIONS
Beneflts paid
Refunds of contributions
Adminisiralive expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assels
Nat assats held in trust for pension benefits

Nat assats - beginning

Met assets - ending

“Pansion Teust Funds Total
Municipal Pension
General Folice Trust
Empioyees Officars Funds
3 404,488 3 270,883 § 675,471
= 43,5'1‘6. n43 516
- 91,261 . 91’ 261
404,488 405,750 810,248
704,437 454,236 1,158,673
- 7,538 7,536
704,437 461,772 1,168,209
{32,164 {35,499) {87.863)
672,273 428,273 1,098,548
1,078,781 ] 832.033 1,808,794
255,821 338,871 592,692
- 17,861 17,861
23,771 18,150 41,921
279,592 372,882 652,474
© 797,168 459,151 1,255,320
5,661,751 4,091,584 9,723,335
S 5,458,920 % 4,550,735 3§ 11,008,635
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CITY OF SANIBEL
INSURANCE IN FORCE
Septembaer 30, 2003

Table #£14

~

Tyoe of Coverage.

Ganeral/Professional Liabiity

a) Errors & Omissions Liability

Coverzge Amount

b} Employss Banafits Program Administration Liabllity

g} Broad Form Property Damage
d) Extra Contractual Legal Exgense

Automohite

a) Automobite Liability

B) Parsonal Injury Protaction {Statutory)

&) Autornobite Physical Damage
Property and Allied Coverages

a) Real and Personal Property
b} inland Marine
¢} Etestranic Data Progessing
d) Fidelity Bond
g) Crime
Faithiul Performance
Honesty .
f) Forgery
g} Time Elemeny/Business Income

n} Maney & Securities/Theft, Disappearance

and Destruction

Warkers Compensation ( Statutary)

a) indemnity Agreament
b} Employers Liability

Spacific Exgess Coverage

a) General Liabiiity
8} Automabile Liability

Flood Coverage - Buildings & Contents

Windstorm Covarage

Bolier & Machinery

{aw Enforcament Death Benefits (Statutory)
Position Fidetity (Finance Diractor)

Storage Tank (Third Party Liability)

5 100,606 Each Person
200,600 Each Qogurence

8 100,000 Each Person
S 200,000 Each Occurance

"
o

e

ltemized per Detailed Scheduls of Values

§ 31387562
5 614,3C3
Inciuded in contents coverage
$ 250,00¢
3 230,000
3 250,000
$ 166,000
3 100,000
5 10,600

1,600,000 Each Accident

1,000,600 Each Diseass
1,000,000 Aggregate by Disease

o EH

5,000,000
5,066,000

7,761,800
9,479,000

[7; . T €N

(3]

3,000.000

50,000 LUine of Duty AD&D
50,000 Frash Pursuit
150,000 intentional Death

€1 €h € A

1,000,000

b 1,000,000

-11-
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Table #16
CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND MISCELLAMEOUS STATISTICS

The City of Sanibel, an island forming the westem-most point of Lee County, was incorporated in 1974 throﬁgh a
raferendum vata on November 5, 1974, and operatas under a Council-City Manager form of government.

NATURAL FEATURES:
Lo Zi1E AT B st sesreersnressassesasssinssnstersersemryanranseshe 1AseTberaabadTsbaar e o7 aarsassbetsserisnssenensars 10,730 Acgres
Shoreline:
Boach Frontage GUIf oF Ma)IC. ..o 11,75 Miles
BAN CAMOS BV civiirreerrererrrrseermsibsss it iaisssanasssminsns e sabbes et e 375 Mies
MERGrove FIOMIAQE. v s et tasns 9.00 Miles
isiand Slevation: Avarage above SBa 1BVeh ... b, 4.00 Feet
Maximum above 5838 1BVEBL. et ecsneaen 13.00 Feet
Pracipitation - ANNUBHY ... b s s o ote L 4230 inches
Tamperaturs: ANTUAD AVBIBGE oo+ voreeecvassserarsesssessensssarerasssressressssssrssssaeess 7. 74 ° Eabyenheit
AUGUSE AVEIAGR rveeaereereeoa s ress st e sassain s 83 ° Fahranhait
JANUANY AVBIAGE ..coeeere oo crcrserensaesstares s sssssnsnsc s sessraress 84 ° Fahranheit
DEMOGRAPHICS:
Rasidant Population 2003 Data.....vise et s st 6,224
Saasonal Peak Sarvice PopUlalion. . e s s s v e 33,000
REGISIEIEH VOIRES .ovvrecoeerecssiatisiassietsssiass e sssas s sspaetsts st s s s b o s e E s e e 4,958
Rasident Avarage Age 2000... e s s e 80.5
Average Assessed Home Value 2003 Data ... 5 505,850
Madian Family Income « 2001 . 5 71,813
pubiic Edusation {Operated at County Leve!)
Slementary/Middia Sehool . 1
Enroliment {(Kindergartsn through Elghth)a e, 4335
PN R BB e cvreeverreesessessssbacsvasteesssnerethost comosntinabeiverersbpsessassisontassanttsershsares 1
Mumber of Full-time Swom Cfficers (Full Time Equivalent)..ecan 24.00
Numher of Part-time Sworn Officers (Full Time Equivalents) ..., 3.25
Fire Stations (Opegrated at County Lavell.a i 2
Mumbaer of Full-time Firafighiers .. 23
FIre HYOrantS, o ar s rn e s st bbb 484
PUDHC LTI coveservrirsreerersrarerarrersssssrsranssiresios basbssssrmasasnrassans s3imsbassbatsasenasn eases 1
LIBPARY HOIINGS. covevres e res s ear s rn iy b s sssees 82,720
Water & Sewer Utilities Water Sewer
ACHVE A COOUMS o evrereeerirearetsereresreassestannes bt dbstabssatersrnnrres hbsbensasissinntnasane 4,601 2274
MHES OF MM et crerrerteeeveereerrsserisesastessision st sbssssarransassssarnbrssasnesiaressines 10G.8
T R = L1 - T OO TP PTO PP PPPRPT P PPPPPRPSPEPRENS 50
Gravity NEBINS....vvrceiorierirrnrrarases v s rer s e es et s s s 42
Capacity per Day - Millions of Gallons.... e, 4.7
Donax Treatment PIant. . e b e e 2.373
Widlfart Treakment Plant. . M. e ecnsrenisesnirre e cstaers s s rsrens 0.125
Roads - Total PUBC & PriVIZ (i e s s s 80.88  Miles
PUbtic ROAAS « PaVAU. e ririireesssnacierstrsasisrssisesenss rista s st ersasasssassans 52.00  Miles
Public Roads - UNPaved.. . ricosssemmissnssissssesssrmmssesestaarssasscass 9.00 Miles
BICHEIE PAIIS e ceirmsinirssaststes e be e s s b it bbb b R bbb 2262  Miles
Causeway {County Owned - Round Trip 33.00) .o, 3 Mies
CAUSEWAY TIAIIC . oot e 3,257,747  Autos
Public & Conservation Land Totah . 8,271  Acres
J.N. "Ding" Darling Wildlife Refuge.. et 6,187  Acres
Sanibel-Captiva Conservation Foundation......... R, 1,250  Acres
120 COUMEY ctetrrerrrarerentneeretiesss st amssrat s ensas s radsbpa P s o g et sh s a st b st s 166  Acres
City of SAITIDE! o veoeoeeeeereesseressesesbetiems s saaRea e Ra T eSS SSEs e 1 6540  Acres
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SINGLE AUDIT







Clifford Chaipel, CPA
Martin A. Redovan, CPA;* CVA
Russell T. Baker, CPA

# Regushaced by th Seate of Florida

David L.Schultz, CPA,* ABV C i__ml LTL “‘;

Cartified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
- .BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Santbel, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sanibel,
Florida (the “City’"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, which, together with the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report therson dated April 22, 2004, We did not audit the financial
statements of Community Housing and Resources, Inc., a component unit. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial
statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Community Housing and Resources, Inc.,

' is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s basic financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

950 Encore Way, Suite 102 115 12660 World Plaza Lane
Naples, FL 34110 : Fort Myers, FL 33907
(239) 417-4007 . (239} 939-3333

Fax: (239) 254-8249 www.swilcpa.com Fax: (239) 939-4682




Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the intzmal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness
is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in
elation: to the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated April 22, 2004,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management of
the City, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through awarding entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

, Wz{(ﬁyu’ﬂ

Schultz, Chaipel & Co., L.L.P.
April 22, 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
" AND STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sanibel, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Sanibel, Florida, (the “City”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement and the requirements described in the Executive Office of the
Governor’s State Projects Compliance Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs and state projects for the year ended September 30, 2003. The City's major federal programs
and state projects are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compﬁance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs and state projects is the
responsibility of the City's management. Our respon:.xblhty is to express an opinion on the City's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program or a state project occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City comphed in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal proorama and state projects for the year ended September 30,
2003.

950 Encore Way, Suite 102 12660 World Plaza Lane
Naples, FL 34110 ; 117 Fort My=rs, FL 33907
(239) 417-4C07 Ny (239) 939-3333

Fax: (239) 254-8249 www.swicpa.com Fax: (239) 9394682




Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirgments of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs and state projects, In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal
. control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 2 major
faderal program and on a major state project in order to determine our auditing procedurss. for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal confrol over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor
General.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is-a condition in-which
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program or a major state
project being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
compliance and its operation that we consider fo be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management of
the City, and fzderal and state awarding agencies and pass-through awarding entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sehuntsy, Cacpel 78 ¢er

Schultz, Chaipel & Co., L.L.P.
April 22,2004
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Federal CFDA/ | Federal, State, or
State CSFA Pass-Through
Grantor/Pass-Tirough Grantor (Program Titie Nuriber Contract Number Expenditures
Environmertal Protection Ageacy:
Passed through State of Florida, Department of
Environmental Protection
Capitalization Graats for State Revolving Funds 66,453 CS 120833080 3 1,998;564
Capitalization Grants for Statz Revelving Funds 66.433 €S 120835080 810,549
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458 WWGL2083510A 15,302
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.438 WWGL2083510L 5,637,680
Capitalization Grants for State Ravolving Funds 66.458 WWR3STIA 12,670
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.438 WW83SLIL 180,960
Total Enviroomental Protection Agency 8,655,725
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through Lee County, Fiorida
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 1301 18,463
Department of Justice
Passed through Siate of Floride, Depariment of
Law Enforcement
Local Law Eaforcement Block Grants 16.392 03-CJ-2Q-09-46-02-101 4,187
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 5 8,678,375
State of Florida
Department of Commuaity Affairs
“Florida Communities Trust 52,002 01-039-FF1 $ 2,122,800
Florida Departiment of Environmental Protection
Florida Recreation Development ’ _
Assistancs Program 37.017 Fo271 150,090

Total Expenditures of Statz Financial Assistance

See accompenying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and statz financial assistance,
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CITY OF SANIBEL

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL AS SISTANCE

September 30, 2003

'NOTE I - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULE

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance (the Schedule) is a
supplementary schedule to the City's basic financial statements and is presented for purposes of
additional analysis. The Schedule is required by Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133, Adudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the Florida Single
Audit Acet.

3

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Al

Basis of Presentation

Faderal Financial Assistance - Pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984 (Public Law 98- 502}, the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104-156), and OMB Circular A-133, federal
financial assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either dn'ectly or
indirectly, that nonfederal entities receive or administer, in the form of grants, contracts,
cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property interest subsidies, insurance, or direct
appropriations.

State Financial Assistance — Pursuant to Florida Single Audit Act (Section 215.97, Florida
Statutes) and Chapter 27D-1, Rules of the Exscutive Office of the Govemor, Florida
Administrative Code, state financial assistance is defined as assistance from state resources, not
including federal financial assistance and state matching, provided to nonstate entities to carry
out a state project. State Financial Assistance includes all types of state assistance as stated in the
rules of the Executive Office of the Governor, established in consultation with the Comptroller
and appropriate state agencies that provide state financial assistance. It includes state financial
assistance provided directly by state awarding agencies or indirectly by recipients of state
awards. It does not include procurement contracts used to buy goods or services fom vendors.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance — OMB Circular.A-133 requires the Schedule to  present

‘the total expenditures for each of the City’s fedsral financial assistance programs as identified in

the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA). Federal financial assistance programs
that have not been assigned a CFDA number are indicated with an “N/A.”

Catalog of State Financial Assistance — Chapter 3A-3, Rules of the Florida Department of
Bagking and Finance, Florida Administrative Code requires the Schedule to present the total state
financial assistance expended for each individual state project as identified in the Catalog of State
Financial Assistance (CSFA). The CSFA is a comprehensive listing of state projects. State
financial assistance projects that have not been assigned a CSFA number are indicated with an
CNAL




CITY OF SANIBEL

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

September 30, 2003

B.

Type A and Type B Programs

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133 establish the levels of
expenditures to be used in defining Type A and Type B federal financial assistance programs.
Type A assistance programs for the City are those programs that exceeded $300,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2002. ‘ ‘

Fach nonstats entity that expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in
excess of $300,000 in any fiscal year is required to have a state single audit for such fiscal year
in accordance with the requirements of the Florida Single Audit Act {Section 215.97, Florida
Statutes).

Reporting Entity

The Schedule includes all federal financial assistance programs and state projects administered
by the City of Sanibel and included in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Basis of Accounting

Both federal and state financial assistance expenditures included in the Schedule are reported
using the acerual basis of accounting.




CITY OF SANIBEL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND STATE PROJECTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

. Section I — Summarv of Auditor’s Report

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued; Ungqualifisd
Internal control over financial reporting:
» Material weakness(es) identified? ves
» Reportable condition(s) identified

that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)? yes
Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? yes

Federal Awards and State Financial dssistance

Internal control over major programs
and state projects:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes

s Reportable condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)? yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
. major federal programs and state projects: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are require
to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 or Chapter
10.354 (1)(g)4., Rules of the Auditor General? yes

X

no

none reported

no

jate)

none reported

no




CITY OF SANIBEL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND STATE PROJECTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September.30, 2003

. Section I - Summarv of Auditor’s Report {Continued}

Identification of major federal programs and state projects:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

66.453 Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds
CSFA Number(s) Name of State Project

52.002 Flonida Department of Community Affairs

Florida Communities Trust

Dotlar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A or Type B:
Major Federal Programs 3 300.600
Major State Projects $ 100,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X ves 1o

Section I1 — Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with paragraphs 5.18
through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards.

Section HII — Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Progsrams

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Section 5 10(a) of
OMB Circular A-133.

There were no matters reportad in the prior year Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs required
to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.




CITY OF SANIBEL

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND STATE PROJECTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

Section IV — Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Stat_ek Projects

Qur audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordamce with Chapter
10.534(1)(g)4., Rules of Auditor General.

Section V — Other Issues

There is no Summary Schedule of Pror Audit Findings (AG Rule 10.557(3)(d)3.) because there were
no prior audit findings related to Federal Programs or State projects.

No corrective action plan is required (AG Rule 10.557(3)(d)6.) because thers were no findings
required to be reported under the Federal or Florida Single Audit Acts.
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